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Salient Features
The salient features are a summary only. For full appreciation, this prospectus should be read in its entirety. The definitions
commencing on page 8 of this prospectus apply mutatis mutandis to the salient features.

1.

2.

INCORPORATION AND HISTORY
1.1.

Wearne was established in 1910 as a construction concern by its founder, William George Wearne. The concern became
involved in the sand and stone business in the 1920’s when a dump crushing operation was started in Carletonville
in support of the shaft sinking operations of gold mining companies on the West Rand. Wearne was incorporated as
a legal persona on 26 October 1949 under registration number UC35135, converted to a close corporation in 1987
under registration number CK87/02297/23 and converted to a company in 1994.

1.2.

The business grew quickly and operations commenced in other mining areas such as Virginia and Welkom in the
Free State. At one stage the company operated stone crushers at seven mines in the Carletonville area and three
in the Free State goldfields. The company’s main customers being Goldfields and Anglo American. In 1971 the
company acquired Noordvaal Crushers to further expand its footprint into the Northern Province. The company’s
Bethlehem quarry was acquired in 1974 and as the company expanded over the years, it became involved in various
big construction projects such as the construction of Rand Afrikaans University, the Western Bypass and the Lesotho
Highlands Water Scheme.

1.3.

The delivery of aggregates (sand and stone) for civil projects has seen the company supporting the big five construction
companies in the construction and resurfacing of various national roads and highways.

1.4.

The Ready Mixed Concrete Division was started in the 1970’s and has subsequently grown to twelve fixed plants and
three mobile plants.

NATURE OF THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS AND INDUSTRY
2.1.

Wearne is the largest black empowered, South African owned, ready mixed concrete and aggregate supplier in the
country. The company provides its products to customers in the construction, housing and mining industries and to
various government projects such as the Kliptown housing project.

2.2.

The current CEO is the fourth generation of the family to manage this family owned business. The company’s stone
crushing and ready mixed concrete plants are strategically located in areas that cover the Free State, Gauteng,
North West and Limpopo Provinces.

2.3.

With annual revenues totalling R175 million for the year ended 28 February 2005, the company’s Ready Mixed
Concrete Division contributed more than 57% of the revenues, its Stone Crushing Division 12% and transportation
contributing the remainder. In terms of the Listings Requirements the company is not a mining company as stone
crushing does not constitute the principal activity.

2.4.

The divisions of the business are as follows:
2.4.1.

Ready Mixed Concrete Division
Material is sourced from its own crushing operations and other suppliers to centralised batch plants
where the concrete is manufactured and then delivered to construction sites using the company’s fleet
of vehicles.

2.4.2.

Stone Crushing Operations
Material from quarries or rock dumps are crushed at the crushing plants and then delivered as sized
aggregates for use in the company’s ready mixed concrete division and for large scale civil engineering
projects.

2.4.3.

Transport Division
The company’s transport fleet operates from its various plants throughout Free State, Gauteng, North
West and Limpopo Provinces. The current fleet consists of 90 mixer trucks and 25 tipper vehicles. The
company also utilises sub-contractors to meet customers’ needs.
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3.

PROSPECTS
3.1.

Aggregate Division
The raising of cash through the private placement will facilitate potential acquisition opportunities of additional
quarries and/or aggregate operations and will potentially allow the company to secure higher margins by reducing
its reliance on third party suppliers. The company is continuously working on the expansion of its existing capacity
and the improvement of its margins.

3.2.

Ready Mixed Concrete Division
Possible geographical expansion into the Western Cape, Eastern Cape and KwaZulu-Natal would enable the company
to supply its customers anywhere in South Africa.

3.3.

Transport Division
Expansion of the transport fleet would enable the company to be less reliant on sub-contractors and would increase
the profit margins on transport.

3.4.

Empowerment
The company has identified Bonke Mkhonto and Ernest Moloi, prominent black entrepreneurs, as the preferred
empowerment partners that can contribute to the company’s objectives, given their operational experience in the
construction industry as set out in paragraph 2 of Annexure 1. The BEE shareholding of Wearne after the private
placement will exceed 16%.

4.

SUMMARY OF HISTORICAL AND FORECAST INCOME STATEMENTS
The historical and forecast financial information of Wearne and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended 28 February 2005
and years ending 28 February 2006 and 28 February 2007, the preparation of which is the responsibility of the directors,
are set out below. The results must be read in conjunction with the independent reporting accountants’ report thereon
reproduced in Annexure 3 and Annexure 6 hereto.
4.1.

Extracts from the historical and forecast income statements

Revenue
Gross profit
Other income
Operating expenses
EBITDA
Depreciation
Profit before interest and taxation
Net interest paid
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Earnings attributable to ordinary
shareholders
Pro forma weighted average shares in
issue (1)
Pro forma earnings per share (cents)
Adjusted for:
Profit on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Pro forma headline earnings per share
(cents)
Pro forma dividend per share (cents)

Audited
28 February 2005
R’000
175 403
45 562
6 225
(27 603)
24 184
(7 270)
16 914
(1 418)
15 496
(5 186)

Forecast
28 February 2006
R’000
188 556
56 724
2 621
(33 640)
25 705
(5 079)
20 626
(3 028)
17 598
(5 279)

Forecast
28 February 2007
R’000
231 169
69 544
3 213
(40 605)
32 152
(6 226)
25 926
(1 963)
23 963
(7 189)

10 310

12 319

16 774

120 395 001
8.56

100 547 945
12.25

125 000 000
13.42

(1.42)

(0.35)

(0.35)

7.14
2.75

11.90
-

13.07
-

Notes:
(1)
(2)
(3)

The pro forma calculation for 28 February 2005 is based on the conversion (after the repurchase of 17 375 ordinary shares on
17 February 2005, the subdivision of the ordinary shares on the basis of 1000:1 and the issue of further shares) of 82 625 ordinary
shares in issue to 100 000 000 ordinary shares in issue on the last practicable date.
The assumptions upon which the forecast income statements are based are set out in paragraph 12.2 of this prospectus.
The actual number of shares in issue, earnings per share, headline earnings per share and dividends per share calculations are set
out in Annexure 2.
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5.

PURPOSE OF THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT AND THE LISTING
5.1.

6.

The purpose of the private placement is to:
-

enhance investor and general public awareness of Wearne, its activities and specialised skills;

-

attract and retain intellectual capital through the incentive of meaningful equity participation;

-

raise capital and to have the flexibility of listed shares to allow the company to take advantage of potential
growth opportunities in the construction sector;

-

broaden Wearne’s shareholder base and to obtain the spread of shareholders required for the listing of Wearne’s
ordinary shares on the JSE;

-

afford members of the investing public, clients and business associates of Wearne the opportunity to participate
directly in the income stream earned by Wearne, as well as in the future capital growth of its assets.

5.2.

An amount of R25 000 000, before share issue and listing expenses, will be raised by the issue of shares for cash to
private individuals, corporations and institutions. The proceeds will be utilised to grow the company’s market share
in the aggregate and ready mixed concrete business, through potential acquisition opportunities and facilitate the
working capital requirements of the existing business.

5.3.

Those private individuals, corporations and institutions that have been invited to apply should do so by completing
the attached private placement application form in accordance with the provisions of this prospectus and the
instructions contained in the private placement application form.

5.4.

No offer will be made to the general public in terms of the private placement. The private placement will be made
to selected applicants only.

5.5.

Subject to the achievement of the required spread of public shareholders, the JSE has formally approved the listing
of 125 000 000 ordinary shares in the share capital of Wearne on ALTx with effect from commencement of business on
Tuesday, 21 February 2006. The shares will trade under the abbreviated name “Wearne”, with the JSE code “WEA”
and ISIN ZAE000078002.

DETAILS OF THE PLACEMENT
6.1.

Salient features
6.1.1.

6.1.2.

6.1.3.

7.

The salient features of the private placement are as follows:
− Offer price per ordinary share (cents)
− Par value per ordinary share (cents)
− Premium per ordinary share (cents)
− Number of ordinary shares offered in terms of private placement
− Issue consideration before expenses
The opening and closing dates of the private placement are as follows:
− Opening date of the private placement at 09:00 on
− Closing date of private placement at 12:00 on
− Anticipated listing date on ALTx on

100
0.1
99.9
25 000 000
R25 million

Monday, 13 February 2006
Wednesday, 15 February 2006
Tuesday, 21 February 2006

The placement will not be underwritten and is not subject to a minimum subscription being achieved.

COPIES OF THE PROSPECTUS
Copies of the prospectus, in English, may be obtained during business hours, prior to the closing of the private placement
from the registered offices of Wearne, Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited and the transfer secretaries, details of which are
set out in the “Corporate information” section of this prospectus.
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Important Dates and Times
Abridged prospectus released on SENS on
Opening date of the private placement at 09:00 on
Closing date of private placement at 12:00 on
Listing of Wearne on ALTx at 09:00 on
Safe custody accounts at CSDP or broker updated in respect of dematerialised shareholders on
or about(1)
Posting of share certificates in respect of certificated shareholders on or about
Refund of surplus private placement application monies received (where applicable) on

2006
Monday, 13 February
Monday, 13 February
Wednesday, 15 February
Tuesday, 21 February
Tuesday, 21 February
Tuesday, 21 February
Wednesday, 22 February

Notes:
(1)
(2)
(3)

CSDP’s effect payment on a delivery versus payment basis.
The above dates are subject to change. Any such change will be released on SENS.
Shareholders wishing to receive shares in dematerialised form must advise their CSDP or broker of their acceptance of the offer to
subscribe for shares in the manner and cut-off time stipulated by their CSDP or broker.
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Definitions
In this prospectus, appendices and the attachment hereto, unless the context indicates otherwise, references to the singular
include the plural and vice versa, words denoting one gender include the other, expressions denoting natural persons include
juristic persons and associations of persons and vice versa, and the words in the first column hereunder have the meanings stated
opposite them in the second column, as follows:
“Act”

The Companies Act, 1973 (Act 61 of 1973), as amended;

“ALTx”

The Alternative Exchange of the JSE;

“aggregate(s)”

sand and stone used in the making of concrete;

“applicants”

selected private individuals, corporations and institutions that have been invited to subscribe
for Wearne shares in terms of the private placement;

“application form”

the application form in respect of the placement, attached to and forming part of this
prospectus;

“auditors” or “independent
reporting accountants”

Clarke and Patterson, Chartered Accountants (SA) (Practice number 900931);

“BEE”

as defined in the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 53 of 2003 and the Mining
Charter, and which means the economic empowerment of all black people, including women,
workers, youth, people with disabilities and people living in rural areas, through diverse but
integrated socio-economic strategies;

“business day”

any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or official public holiday in South Africa;

“certificated shareholders”

Wearne shareholders who elect to receive physical Wearne share certificates;

“certificated shares”

Wearne shares for which physical Wearne share certificates have been issued;

“common monetary area”

South Africa, the Republic of Namibia and the Kingdoms of Swaziland and Lesotho;

“CSDP”

“dematerialised
shareholder”

a shareholder who holds ordinary shares which have been incorporated into the STRATE
system and which are no longer evidenced by physical documents of title in terms of the
Custody and Administration of Securities Act, 1992;

“Designated Adviser”

Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited (Registration number 1999/024433/07), a company
incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa, a Designated Adviser as contemplated
in the Listings Requirements;

“directors” or “board of
directors”

the directors of Wearne, further details of whom appear in Annexure 1;

“documents of title”

Share certificates, certified transfer deeds in respect of balance receipts and electronic
statements and dematerialised shares or any other documents of title acceptable to Wearne
in respect of shares;

“EBITDA”

earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation;

“emigrant”

an emigrant from South Africa whose address is outside the common monetary area;

“Exchange Control
Regulations”

the Exchange Control Regulations, 1961, as amended, promulgated in terms of section 9 of
the Currency and Exchanges Act, 1933 (Act 9 of 1933), as amended;

“Government”

The Government of South Africa;

“GDP”

Gross Domestic Product;

“group”

includes Wearne and the trading activities of the wholly-owned subsidiaries Wearne Logistics
from 1 March 2005, Noordvaal Crushers and the profits of the associate company Senatla, all
companies incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa;

“IFRS”

International Financial Reporting Standards, which comprise standards and interpretations
approved by the International Accounting Standards Board, International Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee and International Accounting Standards, and Standing
Interpretations Committee interpretations approved by the International Accounting
Standards Committee;

“incorporation”
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Central Securities Depository Participant accepted as a participant in terms of the Custody
and Administration of Securities Act, 1992 (Act 85 of 1992), appointed by an individual
shareholder for purposes of, and in regard to the dematerialisation of documents of title for
purposes of incorporation into the STRATE system;

The date of incorporation of Wearne, being 8 August 1994;

“JSE”

JSE Limited (Registration number 2005/022939/06), a company duly registered and
incorporated with limited liability under the company laws of South Africa, licensed as an
exchange under the Securities Services Act, Act 36 of 2004 as amended;

“the last practicable date”

the last practicable date prior to the finalisation of this Document, being Monday, 6 February
2006;

“the listing”

the proposed listing of the entire issued share capital of the company on ALTx, on Tuesday,
21 February 2006;

“Listings Requirements”

The Listings Requirements of the JSE;

“non-resident”

a person whose registered address is outside the common monetary area and who is not an
emigrant;

“Noordvaal Crushers”

Noordvaal Crushers (Pty) Limited (Registration number 1964/001382/07), a whollyowned subsidiary of Wearne and a company incorporated in accordance with the laws of
South Africa;

“ordinary shares”

ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each in the share capital of the company;

“own-name registration”

shareholders who hold shares that have been dematerialised and are recorded by the CSDP
on the register kept by that CSDP in the name of such shareholder;

“private placement” or
“placement”

the private placement of 25 000 000 ordinary shares at 100 cents per ordinary share to
selected institutions, corporations and individuals for cash;

“this prospectus”

this bound document, dated 10 February 2006, including all appendices and the attachment
hereto;

“Rand” or “R” or “cents”

The official currency of South Africa;

“the Registrar”

The Registrar of Companies in South Africa;

“SA GAAP”

South African Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

“Samant Trust”

The Samant Trust, Masters reference IT11908/97;

“SARB”

South African Reserve Bank;

“Senatla”

Senatla Structures (Pty) Limited (Registration number 1999/009885/07), a 49% owned
associate company of Wearne, a company incorporated in accordance with the laws of South
Africa.

“SENS”

The Securities Exchange News Service of the JSE;

“South Africa”

The Republic of South Africa;

“share incentive scheme”

the Wearne Share Incentive Trust, as set out in Annexure 9 that comprises a deferred share
purchase and option scheme;

“shareholders”

Holders of ordinary shares in Wearne;

“shareholders’ interest”

in respect of any company, all of the issued shares in and shareholders’ claims against the
company;

“STRATE”

the settlement and clearing system used by the JSE, managed by STRATE Limited (Registration
number 1998/022242/06), a public company incorporated in accordance with the laws of
South Africa;

“transfer secretaries”

Computershare Investor Services 2004 (Proprietary) Limited (Registration number
2004/003647/07), a company incorporated in accordance with the laws of South Africa;

“Wearne” or “the company”

W G Wearne Limited (Registration number 1994/005983/06), a public company incorporated
in accordance with the laws of South Africa; and

“Wearne Logistics”

W G Wearne Logistics (Pty) Limited (Registration number 1970/008593/07), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Wearne and a company incorporated in accordance with the laws of South
Africa.
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INTRODUCTION
1.1.

Wearne intends to list on ALTx of the JSE as a strategic step that will allow the company to raise capital in support of
its vision of becoming a prominent supplier of cement-based products and aggregates to the whole of South Africa. A
listing will allow the company to finalise its empowerment transaction and will provide the capital which it requires
for organic growth and acquisition opportunities that have been identified in its market sector.

1.2.

Wearne provides ready mixed concrete, road building materials and concrete aggregates to an array of customers
in the mining, road building and construction sectors. The business was formed in 1910 as a sole trader, originally as
a construction concern that soon became involved in crushing operations on the goldfields of the West Rand. From
supporting mine construction projects in its inception years, the company expanded, enabling it to support large
scale construction projects such as the construction of the Rand Afrikaans University and the N1 Western Bypass.
Wearne’s ability to deliver aggregates and ready mixed concrete has also ensured that the company is included in
the tender process for the majority of large scale construction contracts.

1.3.

Wearne’s target market can be divided into large scale infrastructural projects and other, smaller scale projects.
The characteristics of these diverse market segments introduce a cyclicality that has allowed the company to sustain
profitability through tough economic conditions, as is evidenced during its 95 year history.

1.4.

The success of the company’s business philosophy is reflected in the company’s market position, which allows it to
tender for large scale infrastructure projects. The company’s customer-driven focus, reliability and competitive
pricing ensure that it retains its customer base whilst securing new contracts in the face of stiff competition.

1.5.

Wearne has identified the growth in the construction industry, as well as the geographical expansion of its business
operations as the key drivers that will ensure continued revenue growth. The company’s ability to deliver
competitively priced products has ensured its growth in the past.

1.6.

A listing on ALTx will improve its ability to raise capital for strategic acquisitions. Expanded supply capability,
together with increased market accessibility will allow the company to maintain a revenue growth rate of more than
10% over the next three to five years.

2.

3.

INCORPORATION AND HISTORY
2.1.

Wearne was established in 1910 as a construction concern by its founder, William George Wearne. The concern became
involved in the sand and stone business in the 1920’s when a dump crushing operation was started in Carletonville
in support of the shaft sinking operations of gold mining companies on the West Rand. Wearne was incorporated as
a legal persona on 26 October 1949 under registration number UC35135, converted to a close corporation in 1987
under registration number CK87/02297/23 and converted to a company in 1994.

2.2.

The business grew quickly and operations commenced in other mining areas such as Virginia and Welkom in the
Free State. At one stage the company operated stone crushers at seven mines in the Carletonville area and three
in the Free State goldfields. The company’s main customers being Goldfields and Anglo American. In 1971 the
company acquired Noordvaal Crushers to further expand its footprint into the Northern Province. The company’s
Bethlehem quarry was acquired in 1974 and as the company expanded over the years, it became involved in various
big construction projects such as the construction of Rand Afrikaans University, the Western Bypass and the Lesotho
Highlands Water Scheme.

2.3.

The delivery of aggregates (sand and stone) for civil projects has seen the company supporting the big five construction
companies in the construction and resurfacing of various national roads and highways.

2.4.

The Ready Mixed Concrete Division was started in the 1970’s and has subsequently grown to twelve fixed plants and
three mobile plants.

2.5.

The group acquired the entire issued capital of Wearne Logistics from S J Wearne and J C Wearne, directors of Wearne,
and The Samant Trust, a shareholder in Wearne, for the amount of R3 million, with effect from 1 March 2005. Wearne
Logistics carries out transport services for the group. No separate historical financial information is provided on
Wearne Logistics acquired by Wearne on 1 March 2005 as the historical profits of Wearne Logistics do not exceed 10%
of the historical profits of Wearne and are therefore not considered material in terms of the Listings Requirements.
Paragraph 4 below details the group structure and paragraph 20 contains information of the Wearne subsidiaries. The
reviewed interim financial information as set out in Annexure 4 includes the results of Wearne Logistics.

INDUSTRY BACKGROUND
3.1.

Introduction
The construction sector has, except for 1999, recorded positive growth for the last decade and contributes
approximately 3% to total GDP. Over the past years, the trend in this sector’s growth continued upwards, with the
recent growth in fixed investment in the sector reflecting a general belief that the growth will continue.
The country’s investment in residential and non-residential buildings in 2004 was around R44 billion, while R28 billion
was spent on construction works including civil engineering, mining, harbours, airports and other infrastructural
projects.

3.2.

Civil Engineering
Conditions in the civil engineering industry (responsible for a major component of gross fixed capital formation
in South Africa), remained severe in 2004, with a slight improvement evident in the last quarter. During 2004
the civil engineering industry contracted by approximately 6% in real terms. The market was characterised by a
high frequency of smaller tenders, little fixed capital spending by general government and subdued private sector
spending on the back of a strong currency. Prospects for this section of the industry are positive, as the government
has undertaken to spend more than R320 billion on infrastructure over the next five years.

3.3.

Building
The boom times being experienced in the building industry continued unabated, driven predominantly by the high
demand in the residential sector. Large-scale apartment blocks and housing estates, as well as mass, low-cost housing
have provided builders with a high level of activity. The non-residential sector also reported an improvement in 2004
– mainly from the last quarter onwards. This recovery was broad-based and even included the hitherto stagnant
office market, as lower real interest rates enticed large institutional investors to develop office parks.

3.4.

Cement Demand
2004 and 2005 were excellent years for cement demand as annual growth rates exceeded 10%. For the first time in
2005 total cement demand, including exports, exceeded the 13 million ton level, compared to the 2003 demand of
10 million tons.
(Source: The Cement and Concrete Institute, www.cnci.co.za)
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4.

GROUP STRUCTURE
The group structure, at the last practicable date is set out below:

100%

NOORDVAAL
CRUSHERS

5.

100%

49%

WEARNE
LOGISTICS

SENATLA

NATURE OF BUSINESS
5.1.

Wearne is the largest black empowered, South African owned, ready mixed concrete and aggregate supplier in the
country. The company provides its products to customers in the construction, housing, mining industries and to
various government projects such as the Kliptown housing project.

5.2.

The current CEO is the fourth generation of the family to manage this family owned business. The company’s stone
crushing and ready mixed concrete plants are strategically located in areas that cover the Free State, Gauteng,
North West and Limpopo Provinces.

5.3.

With annual revenues totalling R175 million for the year ended 28 February 2005, the company’s Ready Mixed
Concrete Division contributed more than 57% of the revenues, its Stone Crushing Division 12% and transportation
contributing the remainder. In terms of the Listings Requirements the company is not a mining company as stone
crushing does not constitute the principal activity.

5.4.

The divisions of the business are as follows:
5.4.1.

Ready Mixed Concrete Division
Material is sourced from its own crushing operations and other suppliers to centralised batch plants
where the concrete is manufactured and then delivered to construction sites using the company’s fleet
of vehicles.

5.4.2.

Stone Crushing Operations
Material from quarries or rock dumps are crushed at the crushing plants and then delivered as sized
aggregates for use in the company’s ready mixed concrete division and for large scale civil engineering
projects.

5.4.3.

Transport Division
The company’s transport fleet operates from its various plants throughout Free State, Gauteng, North
West and Limpopo Provinces. The current fleet consists of 90 mixer trucks and 25 tipper vehicles. The
company also utilises sub-contractors to meet customers’ needs.

6.

PROSPECTS
6.1.

Aggregate Division
The raising of cash through the private placement will facilitate potential acquisition opportunities of additional
quarries and/or aggregate operations and will allow the company to potentially secure higher margins by reducing
its reliance on third party suppliers. The company is continuously working on the expansion of its existing capacity
and the improvement of its margins.

6.2.

Ready Mixed Concrete Division
Possible geographical expansion into the Western Cape, Eastern Cape and KwaZulu-Natal would enable the company
to supply its customers anywhere in South Africa.

6.3.

Transport Division
Expansion of the transport fleet would enable the company to be less reliant on sub-contractors and would increase
the profit margins on transport.
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6.4.

Empowerment
The company has identified Bonke Mkhonto and Ernest Moloi as the preferred empowerment partners that can
contribute to the company’s objectives, given their operational experience in the construction industry as set out in
paragraph 2 of Annexure 1. The BEE shareholding of Wearne after the private placement will exceed 16%.

7.

MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS
7.1.

The shareholders, other than directors, who are, directly beneficially interested in 5% or more of the issued ordinary
share capital of Wearne at the last practicable date are as follows:
Name of shareholder
The Samant Trust

Number of shares
49 678 517

Percentage held before
private placement
49.7%

Percentage held
after private placement
39.7%

Notes:
(1)
Refer to paragraph 5 in Annexure 1 for the directors’ shareholdings.
(2)
The beneficiaries of the Samant Trust are A J Wearne, D D M Wearne, S J Wearne, J C Wearne, K Lindeque and R Steyn. The
trustees are A J Wearne, D D M Wearne and O J G Harvey. All capital and revenue distributions from the trust are at the discretion
of the trustees.

8.

7.2.

No other shareholder will, as far the directors of Wearne are aware, directly or indirectly, hold 5% or more of the
issued share capital of Wearne following the private placement. The company will have a public shareholding of at
least 100 shareholders that will hold a minimum of 10% of the ordinary shares on the day of listing. There will be no
controlling shareholder in Wearne after the listing.

7.3.

There will be no change in the controlling shareholder as a result of the private placement.

7.4.

There have been no changes in the controlling shareholders and trading objects of Wearne and its subsidiaries during
the last five years.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
Details of the directors and executive management, including the appointment, remuneration, borrowing powers of directors
and directors’ interests and declarations are set out in Annexure 1.

9.

PURPOSE OF PLACEMENT AND LISTING ON ALTx
9.1.

Subject to the achievement of the required spread of public shareholders, the JSE has formally approved the listing
of 125 000 000 ordinary shares in the share capital of Wearne on ALTx with effect from commencement of business on
Tuesday, 21 February 2006. The shares will trade under the abbreviated name “Wearne”, with the JSE code “WEA”
and ISIN ZAE000078002.

9.2.

Wearne has a share capital of at least R2 million comprised in its reserves. The company will have a public shareholding
of at least 100 shareholders that will hold a minimum of 10% of the ordinary shares on the day of listing.

9.3.

An amount of R25 000 000, before share issue and listing expenses, will be raised by the issue of shares for cash to
private individuals, corporations and institutions. The proceeds will be utilised to grow the company’s market share
in the aggregate and ready mixed concrete business, through potential acquisition opportunities and facilitate the
working capital requirements of the existing business.

9.4.

The purpose of the placement and the listing are to:
-

enhance investor and general public awareness of Wearne, its activities and specialised skills;

-

attract and retain intellectual capital through the incentive of meaningful equity participation;

-

raise capital and to have the flexibility of listed shares to allow the company to take advantage of growth
opportunities in the construction sector;

-

broaden Wearne’s shareholder base and to obtain the spread of shareholders required for the listing of Wearne’s
ordinary shares on the JSE;

-

afford members of the investing public, clients and business associates of Wearne the opportunity to participate
directly in the income stream earned by Wearne, as well as in the future capital growth of its assets.
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10.

DETAILS OF THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT
10.1. Salient features
10.1.1.

The salient features of the private placement are as follows:
−
−
−
−
−

10.1.2.

Offer price per ordinary share (cents)
Par value per ordinary share (cents)
Premium per ordinary share (cents)
Number of ordinary shares offered in terms of private placement
Issue consideration before expenses

100
0.1
99.9
25 000 000
R25 million

The opening and closing dates of the private placement are as follows:
− Opening date of the private placement at 09:00 on
− Closing date of private placement at 12:00 on
− Anticipated listing date on ALTx on

Monday, 13 February 2006
Wednesday, 15 February 2006
Tuesday, 21 February 2006

10.1.3.

Those private individuals, corporations and institutions that have been invited to apply should do so by
completing the attached private placement application form in accordance with the provisions of this
prospectus and the instructions contained in the private placement application form.

10.1.4.

No offer will be made to the general public in terms of the private placement. The private placement will
be made to selected applicants only.

10.1.5.

The Wearne ordinary shares issued in terms of the private placement will rank pari passu with all other
ordinary shares issued by Wearne.

10.2. Procedures for acceptance and subscription of shares in Wearne
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10.2.1.

Applications for the private placement must be made on the attached private placement application form
provided to selected applicants. Photocopies or reproductions will be accepted. Each application will be
regarded as a single application.

10.2.2.

The rights granted to selected applicants in terms of the private placement may not be ceded, renounced
or assigned in favour of anyone else by the applicant to whom it is addressed.

10.2.3.

The private placement shares may not be applied for in the name of a minor, deceased estate, partnership
or trust. Executors, trustees and individual partners may apply for the private placement shares in their
own name or through nominee companies. No documentary evidence of capacity need accompany the
private placement application but the directors of Wearne reserve the right to call upon any applicant to
furnish evidence of such capacity for noting.

10.2.4.

The private placement applications are irrevocable once received by the Designated Adviser or the
company.

10.2.5.

No receipts will be issued for applications and/or payments received.

10.2.6.

Applications must be for a minimum of 5 000 shares and in multiples of 1 000 shares thereafter.

10.2.7.

Shares will only be traded in electronic form and accordingly all shareholders who elect to receive
certificated shares will first have to dematerialise their share certificates should they wish to trade them.
Applicants are advised that it takes between one and ten days to dematerialise their certificated shares
depending on the volumes being processed by STRATE at the time of dematerialisation.

10.2.8.

Payment may only be made by bank guaranteed cheque (crossed “not transferable”), banker’s draft or
electronic transfer (followed by fax or electronic proof of payment in the case of electronic transfers).
Postal orders, cash or telegraphic transfers will not be accepted. Cheques must be made payable in favour
of “W G Wearne Limited”. All cheques and banker’s drafts will be deposited by the Designate Adviser
immediately upon receipt in a designated account under the control of Wearne with a registered South
African bank.

10.2.9.

The private placement applications will only be regarded as complete once payment for the total amount
of the application has been received. Should any cheque or banker’s draft subsequently be dishonoured,
the directors of Wearne may, in their sole discretion, and without prejudice to any rights the company
may have, regard the private placement application of such applicant as being revoked or take such steps
in regards thereto as they deem fit.

10.2.10.

“Blocked Rand” may be used by emigrants and non-residents of the common monetary area for payment in
terms of the private placement. In this regard, reference should be made to paragraph 10.12 below that
deals with Exchange Control Regulations.

10.3. Application for certificated shares – payment by bank guaranteed cheque or banker’s draft
Applicants who elect to receive their allocated shares in certificated form and who wish to pay by way of bank
guaranteed cheque or banker’s draft must complete and return the private placement application, together with
their payment in the form of a bank guaranteed cheque or banker’s draft (crossed “not transferable” and drawn in
favour of “W G Wearne Limited”) in an envelope marked “Wearne Private Placement” to:
if delivered by hand or by courier
Designated Adviser
Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
39 First Road
Hyde Park
Johannesburg
2196

if posted
Designated Adviser
Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
PO Box 411216
Craighall
2024

so as to be received by no later than 12:00 on Wednesday, 15 February 2006.
No late applications will be accepted.
10.4. Application for certificated shares – payment by electronic transfer
10.4.1.

Applicants who elect to receive their allocated shares in certificated form and who wish to pay by way
of electronic transfer may do so, in which case the private placement application, and proof of such
payment by electronic transfer must be hand delivered, posted or faxed to the Designated Adviser
(and not the transfer secretaries) to:
if delivered by hand

if posted

if faxed

Designated Adviser

Designated Adviser

Designated Adviser

Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited

Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited

(011) 447 1929

39 First Road

PO Box 411216

Hyde Park

Craighall

Johannesburg

2024

2196
so as to be received by no later than 12:00 on Wednesday, 15 February 2006.
10.4.2.

Payment by electronic transfer must be made into the following bank account:
Bank:

Nedbank Limited

Branch:

Business Northrand

Branch code:

146905

Account name:

WG Wearne Limited

Account number: 1469154668
10.4.3.

Wearne accepts no responsibility and will not be liable for the correctness of any allocation of private
placement shares pursuant to payment being made or alleged to have been made by way of electronic
transfer due to proof of such payment not being received or purported proof of such payment being
insufficient or defective or Wearne, for any reason, not being able to reconcile a payment or purported
payment with a particular application for private placement shares.

10.5. Disadvantages of holding shares in certificated form
10.5.1.

The current risks associated with holding shares in certificated form, including the risk of loss or tainted
scrip, remain.

10.5.2.

At the point at which the shareholder wishes to transact on the JSE, he will be required to appoint a
CSDP or broker to dematerialise the shares prior to the broker being able to transact in the shares which
dematerialisation can take up to 10 days. A certificated shareholder will have no recourse in the event of
delays occasioned by the validation process or the acceptance or otherwise of its certificated shares by a
CSDP.
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10.6. Application for dematerialised shares – payment by electronic transfer or through CSDP or broker
10.6.1.

Applicants who elect to receive their allocated shares in dematerialised form and who wish to pay by way
of electronic transfer may do so, in which case the private placement application and the section on their
CSDP or broker, and proof of such payment by electronic transfer must be hand delivered, posted or faxed
to:
if delivered by hand

if posted

if faxed

Designated Adviser

Designated Adviser

Designated Adviser

Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited

Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited

(011) 447 1929

39 First Road

PO Box 411216

Hyde Park

Craighall

2196

2024

so as to be received by no later than 12:00 on Wednesday, 15 February 2006.
10.6.2.

Payment by electronic transfer must be made into the following bank account:
Bank:

Nedbank Limited

Branch:

Business Northrand

Branch code:

146905

Account name:

WG Wearne Limited

Account number:

1469154668

10.6.3.

Wearne accepts no responsibility and will not be liable for the correctness of any allocation of private
placement shares pursuant to payment being made or alleged to have been made by way of electronic
transfer due to proof of such payment not being received or purported proof of such payment being
insufficient or defective or Wearne, for any reason, not being able to reconcile a payment or purported
payment with a particular application for private placement shares.

10.6.4.

Applicants who wish to receive their allocated shares in dematerialised form, must complete and return
the private placement application to the Designated Adviser or their duly appointed CSDP or broker by the
time and date stipulated in the agreement governing their relationship with their CSDP or broker, together
with the method of payment as stipulated in such agreement.

10.6.5.

The brokers will collate all their respective private placement applications and forward the instruction to
the brokers’ nominated CSDP’s.

10.6.6.

The CSDP’s will collate all the private placement applications from brokers and/or applicants and notify
the transfer secretaries.

10.6.7.

Brokers and CSDP’s will be notified by the transfer secretaries on the second business day following the
closing of the private placement of their allocation in respect thereof.

10.6.8.

In respect of those applicants who elect to receive dematerialised shares, their duly appointed CSDP’s or
broker’s account will be updated on or about Tuesday, 21 February 2006.

10.7. Reservation of rights
10.7.1.

The directors of Wearne reserve the right to accept or refuse any application(s), either in whole or in part,
or to pro-rate any or all application(s) (whether or not received timeously) in such manner as they may, in
their sole and absolute discretion, determine.

10.7.2.

The directors of Wearne reserve the right to accept or reject, either in whole or in part, any private
placement applications should the terms and the instructions contained in this prospectus not properly be
complied with.

10.8. Irrevocable undertakings
Wearne holds irrevocable undertakings from various selected investors to subscribe for 25 000 000 shares in terms of
the private placement, amounting to 100% of the private placement shares.
10.9. No minimum subscription
The private placement is not subject to a minimum subscription being achieved.
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10.10. Oversubscriptions
10.10.1.

The private placement of 25 000 000 ordinary shares have been fully allocated to the investors who have
given irrevocable undertakings as set out in paragraph 10.8 above.

10.10.2.

In the event of the private placement application being accepted for a lesser number of shares than
applied for or rejected, any surplus application monies received, will be refunded by the company (where
applicable) by a cheque drawn on Nedbank Limited, without interest from the date of receipt of such
monies, and posted by ordinary mail at the risk of the applicant concerned, on or about Wednesday,
22 February 2006 (or on clearance of the funds, if later) in respect of certificated shareholders only.

10.11. Issue of private placement shares
10.11.1.

All private placement shares offered will be issued at the expense of Wearne.

10.11.2.

All private placement shares issued are subject to the provisions of Wearne’s memorandum and articles of
association and will rank pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares in issue. Annexure 1
contains extracts of Wearne’s articles of association.

10.11.3.

Wearne shares will only be traded on the JSE in electronic form and, as such, all shareholders need to
dematerialise their shares should they wish to trade them. Applicants are advised that it takes between
one and ten days to dematerialise certificated shares, depending on volumes being processed by STRATE
at the time of the dematerialisation.

10.11.4.

The principle features of STRATE are as follows:
-

trades executed on the JSE must be settled within five business days;

-

there will be penalties for late settlement;

-

electronic record of ownership replaces share certificates and physical delivery of certificates; and

-

all investors are required to appoint either a broker or CSDP to act on their behalf and to handle all
settlement requirements.

10.12. Exchange Control Regulations
The following summary is intended as a guide and is, therefore, not comprehensive. If you are in any doubt hereto,
please consult your professional adviser.
10.12.1.

A former resident of the common monetary area who has emigrated from South Africa may use blocked
Rand to purchase shares in terms of this prospectus.

10.12.2.

All payments in respect of subscriptions for shares by non-residents using blocked Rand must be made
through an authorised dealer in foreign exchange.

10.12.3.

Share certificates issued in respect of certificated shares purchased using blocked Rand in terms of this
prospectus will be endorsed “non-resident”. Such share certificates will be placed under the control of the
authorised dealer through whom the payment was made. Statements issued to non-resident dematerialised
shareholders will be restrictively endorsed as “non-resident”.

10.12.4.

If applicable, refund monies payable in respect of an unsuccessful application, emanating from blocked
Rand accounts will be returned to the authorised dealer administering such blocked Rand accounts for the
credit of such unsuccessful applicant’s blocked Rand account.

10.12.5. Applicants resident outside the common monetary area
10.12.5.1 A person who is not resident in the common monetary area should obtain advice as to whether
any governmental, and/or legal consent is required and/or whether any other formality must
be observed to enable an application to be made in terms of the private placement.
10.12.5.2 This prospectus is accordingly not an offer in any area or jurisdiction in which it is illegal to
make such an offer. In such circumstances this prospectus is provided for information purposes
only. All share certificates issued to non-residents of South Africa will be endorsed “nonresident” in terms of the Exchange Control Regulations. Statements issued to dematerialised
shareholders will be restrictively endorsed as “non-resident”.
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11.

MATERIAL CHANGES
The directors report that there have been no material changes in the financial or trading position of Wearne and the group
since 28 February 2005 and 31 August 2005, other than as disclosed in this prospectus.

12.

PROFIT HISTORY, FORECASTS, UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION AND DIVIDEND
POLICY
12.1. Audited income statements for Wearne for the three financial years ended 28 February 2005
12.1.1.

The audited historical financial information for Wearne and its subsidiaries, the preparation of which
is the responsibility of the directors, is presented in Annexure 2. Annexure 3 contains the independent
reporting accountants’ report on the historical financial information of Wearne.

12.1.2.

The reviewed interim financial information for Wearne for the 6 months ended 31 August 2005, the
preparation of which is the responsibility of the directors, is presented in Annexure 4. Annexure 5 contains
the independent reporting accountants’ report on the reviewed interim financial information of Wearne.

Audited
28 February 2003
R’000
Revenue
131 380
Gross profit
22 152
Other income
4 687
Operating expenses
(15 790)
11 049
EBITDA
(4 686)
Depreciation
Profit before interest and taxation
6 363
(1 204)
Net interest paid
Profit before taxation
5 159
Taxation
(1 369)
Earnings attributable to ordinary
3 790
shareholders (3)
Pro forma weighted average shares
in issue (1)
Pro forma earnings per share
(cents)
Adjusted for:
Profit on disposal of investments
Profit on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Pro forma headline earnings per
share (cents)
Pro forma dividend per share
(cents)

Audited
28 February 2004
R’000
147 202
29 616
3 732
(19 739)
13 609
(6 714)
6 895
(2 517)
4 378
(1 395)

Audited
28 February 2005
R’000
175 403
45 562
6 225
(27 603)
24 184
(7 270)
16 914
(1 418)
15 496
(5 186)

2 983

10 310

121 028 744

121 028 744

120 395 001

3.13

2.46

8.56

-

(0.24)

-

(1.69)

(0.60)

(1.42)

1.44

1.62

7.14

0.08

0.83

2.75

Notes:
(1)
(2)
(3)
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Pro forma calculation for the weighted average shares in issue for 28 February 2005 is based on the conversion (after the
repurchase of 17 375 ordinary shares on 17 February 2005, the subdivision of the ordinary shares on the basis of 1000:1 and the
issue of further shares) of 82 625 ordinary shares in issue to 100 000 000 ordinary shares in issue on the last practicable date.
The disproportionate 2003 earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders arise from the profit on disposal of property, plant
and equipment.
The actual number of shares in issue, earnings per share, headline earnings per share and dividends per share calculations
are set out in Annexure 2.

12.2. Profit forecasts for the years ending 28 February 2006 and 28 February 2007
12.2.1.

The consolidated profit forecasts of the group for the years ending 28 February 2006 and
28 February 2007, the preparation of which is the responsibility of the directors, are set out below.
The forecasts should be read in conjunction with the independent reporting accountants’ report thereon
as set out in Annexure 6.

Revenue
Gross profit
Other income
Operating expenses
EBITDA
Depreciation
Profit before interest and taxation
Net interest paid
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders

Forecast
28 February 2006
R’000
188 556
56 724
2 621
(33 640)
25 705
(5 079)
20 626
(3 028)
17 598
(5 279)
12 319

Weighted average shares in issue
Shares in issue at period end
Earnings per share (cents)
Adjusted for:
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Headline earnings per share (cents)
Dividend per share (cents)
12.2.2.

Forecast
28 February 2007
R’000
231 169
69 544
3 213
(40 605)
32 152
(6 226)
25 926
(1 963)
23 963
(7 189)
16 774

100 547 945
125 000 000
12.25

125 000 000
125 000 000
13.42

(0.35)
11.90
-

(0.35)
13.07
-

Main assumptions
(1) The revenue forecasts for the years ended 28 February 2006 and 2007 are based on anticipated
growth in product volumes and prices and the effect of new plants on turnover.
(2) Gross margins are anticipated to remain relatively unchanged but are dependent on the anticipated
product volumes being achieved and on no major price changes in the principal raw materials utilised
(eg. cement).
(3) Operating costs are anticipated to grow in line with inflation and volumes, and the effects of new
plants have been included.
(4) Other income is expected to remain relatively unchanged.

12.2.3.

Comments on the forecast financial information
12.2.3.1. The forecast financial information is based on the assumption that circumstances which affect
the company’s business but which are outside the control of the directors, will not materially
alter in such a way as to affect the trading of the company. More specifically:
−

trading conditions are not expected to be materially different in each of the forecast
periods;

−

costs will increase in line with the expected rate of inflation;

−

interest rates and the basis and rates of taxation, both direct and indirect, will not change
materially.

12.2.3.2. In addition, the forecast financial information is based on the assumptions that:
−

there will be continuity in existing management and trading policies;

−

there will be no change in the present accounting policies.

12.2.3.3. In the opinion of the directors, the above assumptions are significant to the forecasts as being
key factors upon which the financial results of the company will depend. However certain
assumptions may not materialise and/or certain unforeseen events may occur or circumstances
may arise subsequent to the forecasts being made. Accordingly, the results achieved for the
periods referred to above may differ from those forecast and the variations may be material.
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12.3. Unaudited pro forma income statement and balance sheet
12.3.1.

The unaudited pro forma income statement and balance sheet are provided for illustrative purposes only
to provide information about how the private placement may have impacted on the group’s results and
financial position. Due to the nature of the unaudited pro forma financial information, it may not give a
fair presentation of the group’s results and financial position after the private placement. The unaudited
pro forma income statement and balance sheet are based on the reviewed interim Wearne results at
31 August 2005 as set out in Annexure 4 and reported on by the independent reporting accountants’
report in Annexure 5. The unaudited pro forma income statement and balance sheet should be read in
conjunction with the independent reporting accountants’ report thereon as set out in Annexure 7. The
directors of Wearne are responsible for the preparation of the unaudited pro forma financial information
of Wearne.

12.3.2.

Unaudited pro forma income statement reflecting the private placement adjustment:

Revenue
Gross profit
Other income
Operating expenses
EBITDA
Depreciation
Profit before interest and
taxation
Net interest paid
Profit before taxation
Taxation
Earnings attributable to
ordinary shareholders
Pro forma weighted average
shares in issue (1)
Pro forma earnings per share
(cents)
Adjusted for:
Profit on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Pro forma headline earnings
per share (cents)

Reviewed interim
6 months ended
31 August 2005
R’000
96 937
31 316
1 432
(18 470)
14 278
(3 146)

Private placement
adjustment
R’000
-

Unaudited
pro forma after the
private placement
adjustment
31 August 2005
R’000
96 937
31 316
1 432
(18 470)
14 278
(3 146)

11 132
(1 282)
9 850
(2 883)

821
821
(238)

11 132
(461)
10 671
(3 121)

6 967

583

7 550

100 000 000

25 000 000

125 000 000

6.97

-

6.04

(0.49)

-

(0.39)

6.48

-

5.65

Notes:
(1)
The unaudited pro forma income statement was prepared on the basis that the private placement was completed on
1 March 2005 and a total of R25 million less estimated costs as set out in paragraph 13 were raised for the company.
(2)
The average interest rate used in calculations is 7%.
(3)
No income benefit with regards operating profits in respect of the private placement has been included as the cash raised
will be used to fund expansion or facilitate potential acquisitions and to assist working capital requirements, the income
benefit of which cannot be accurately estimated at this point in time.
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12.3.3.

Unaudited pro forma balance sheet reflecting the private placement adjustment is set out below.

Reviewed interims
ended (1) Private placement
31 August 2005
adjustment
R’000
R’000

Unaudited
pro forma after the
private placement
adjustment
31 August 2005
R’000

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill
Current assets
Total assets

50 315
2 419
50 409
103 143

23 468
23 468

50 315
2 419
73 877
126 611

Shareholders’ funds
Share capital
Share premium
Retained earnings
Ordinary shareholders’ funds
Shareholders’ loans
Total shareholders’ funds

83
26 277
26 360
2 101
28 461

25
23 443
23 468
23 468

108
23 443
26 277
49 828
2 101
51 929

LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation
Current liabilities
Total liabilities

24 744
4 450
45 488
74 682

-

24 744
4 450
45 488
74 682

103 143

23 468

126 611

100 000 000
26.36

25 000 000
-

125 000 000
39.86

23.94

-

37.93

Total liabilities and shareholders’
funds
Pro forma shares in issue (5)
Net asset value per share (cents)
Net tangible asset value per share
(cents)

Notes:
(1)
The reviewed interim financial information of Wearne as set out in Annexure 4.
(2)
The unaudited pro forma balance sheet was prepared on the basis that the private placement was completed on
31 August 2005.
(3)
Share capital and share premium have been adjusted for the 25 000 000 new shares issued in terms of the private placement.
The estimated expenses of R1.532 million as set out in paragraph 13 of this prospectus are provided for against the share
premium account in the private placement column.
(4)
The cash balances under current assets have been adjusted for the cash received in terms of the private placement.
(5)
The 82 625 shares in issue were converted to 100 000 000 prior to the private placement as set out in paragraph 21.6
below.

12.4. Dividends
12.4.1.

It is the intention of the company to reconsider its dividend policy once the company has achieved
mature growth, and periodically thereafter to take account of prevailing circumstances and future cash
requirements. Initially all earnings generated by the company will be utilised to fund future growth and
development.

12.4.2.

Any dividends not claimed for a period of not less than three years from the date on which such dividends
became payable may be forfeited for the benefit of the company.

12.4.3.

There is no arrangement under which future dividends will be waived or have been waived.
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13.

PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND ISSUE EXPENSES
13.1. The estimated expenses of the private placement and the listing, exclusive of Value-Added Tax, are as follows:

Printing, publication, distribution and advertising expenses
JSE documentation fees
JSE listing fees
Share issue expenses, fiscal duties and taxes – Transfer secretaries
Transfer secretaries
Designated Adviser – Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
Fund raising fees – Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
Reporting accountants – Clarke and Patterson
Attorneys – Fluxmans Inc
Contingency
Estimated total

R’000
150
34
13
100
50
410
435
120
120
100
1 532

13.2. The abovementioned estimated expenses, which will not exceed the share premium will be written-off against the
share premium account to the extent permissible by the Act.

14.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS, LEASE PAYMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The company had no material capital commitments, lease payments and contingent liabilities at 31 August 2005, except
as disclosed in notes 6 and 8 of the reviewed interim financial information in Annexure 4. There have been no material
changes to the capital commitments, lease payments and contingent liabilities of the company since that date, other than
as disclosed in this prospectus.

15.

LOANS RECEIVABLE AND BORROWING POWERS
15.1. No material loans have been made by Wearne or any of its subsidiaries. No other inter-company finance has been
given between 28 February 2005 and the last practicable date.
15.2. The company has not received any material loans. The borrowing powers of the company have not been exceeded
during the three years preceding the date of this prospectus.

16.

PROPERTY AND SUBSIDIARIES ACQUIRED
Details of the subsidiaries acquired by Wearne are set out in paragraph 20 below. Wearne Logistics was acquired from
S J Wearne and J C Wearne, who are directors of the company and from the Samant Trust which is a shareholder of the
company.

17.

SHARES ISSUED, OTHER THAN FOR CASH
Save as set out in paragraph 21 below, no shares were issued or agreed to be issued by the company or any of its subsidiaries
during the past three years, other than for cash.

18.

PROPERTY AND SUBSIDIARIES DISPOSED OR TO BE DISPOSED OF
No material property or subsidiaries other than those disclosed have been disposed of within the last three years preceding
the date of the prospectus.
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19.

PRINCIPAL IMMOVABLE PROPERTY OWNED AND LEASED
Details of the properties of Wearne including properties acquired in the last three years preceding the date of this
prospectus:
Date of
acquisition
1971

Consideration
R
174 519

1974

68 557

1984

1 401 673

1984

129 117

1988

106 895

1995

379 449

1996

1 024 317

2002

412 746

2005

840 000
4 537 273

20.

Valuation Details of property
Loans
R
R
- Quarry, offices, and workshop situated on Portion 64 of the
Farm Roodepoort No. 744, Registration Division LS, District of
Polokwane, Northern Province, measuring 85,6532 hectares
in extent and held under Deed of Transfer no T19589/1972.
Registrar of Pretoria.
400 000 Residence situated on Erf 1963, Bethlehem Ext 24, Freestate
Province, measuring 2130 square metres in extent and
held under deed of transfer No T159/1974. Registrar of
Bloemfontein.
Disposed of in December 2005.
1 800 000 Office and Workshop buildings situate on remaining extent
of Portion 31 of the Farm Middelvlei, No. 225, Randfontein,
Gauteng Province, measuring 38.5822 hectares in extent and
held under deed of transfer number T53027/1984. Registrar
of Pretoria.
550 000 Office buildings situate on Portion 56 of Erf 247, Potchindustria,
Potchefstroom, North West Province, measuring 9026 square
metres in extent and held under deed of transfer number
T64460/1987. Registrar of Pretoria.
100 000 Office Buildings and quarry situate on Portion 1 of the Farm
Eureka, No. 1538, Kroonstad, Freestate Province, measuring
57.0448 hectares in extent and held under deed of transfer
number T2347/1987. Registrar of Bloemfontein.
550 000 Office buildings situated on Portion 1 of Erf 31, Vanderbijlpark
North West No 7 Industrial, Gauteng Province, measuring
1.1449 hectares in extent and held under deed of transfer
number T82872/1995. Registrar of Pretoria.
1 000 000 Quarry, offices, and workshop situated on Erf 4038,
Bethlehem, Freestate Province, measuring 65,8862 hectares
in extent and held under deed of transfer no T8136/1996.
Registrar of Bloemfontein.
500 000 Office buildings situate on Portions 2, 3, 4 and 5 of Erf
1642, Roodekop, Gauteng Province, measuring 1785 square
meters in extent and held under deed of transfer number
T31098/2002. Registrar of Johannesburg.
840 000 Industrial property being Erf 730 Spartan ext 7, Gauteng 840 000
Province, measuring 1,6028 hectares in extent.
5 740 000
840 000

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the company’s subsidiaries are set out below:
Name

Registration
number

Date of becoming
a subsidiary

Nature of
business

Percentage of
ordinary issued
shares owned by
Wearne

Issued share
capital of
subsidiary

Wearne Logistics

1970/008593/07

1 March 2005

Transport

100

3

Noordvaal Crushers

1964/001382/07

28 July 1971

Property owner

100

16 000
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21.

SHARE CAPITAL
21.1. Authorised and issued share capital
The authorised and issued share capital of Wearne, taking into account the private placement and listing costs as set
out in paragraph 13.1 above, which are to be offset against the share premium, are set out below:
Rand
Authorised
500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each
Issued, before the private placement
100 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each
Share premium
Issued, after the private placement
125 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each
Share premium

500 000
100 000
125 000
23 443 000

21.2. All the authorised and issued shares are of the same class and rank pari passu in every respect.
21.3. Save as set out in paragraph 21.5 below, there has been no sub-division or consolidation of shares during the three
years prior to the date of issue of this prospectus.
21.4. Save as provided for in paragraph 21.6 below, no offer has been made for the subscription or sale of shares during
the three-year period preceding the date of issue of this prospectus.
21.5. Alterations to authorised share capital
21.5.1.

Wearne was incorporated with an authorised ordinary share capital of 100 000 ordinary shares with a par
value of R1.00 each.

21.5.2.

The company:
21.5.2.1. sub-divided its authorised share capital from 100 000 ordinary shares of R1.00 each into
100 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each on 2 December 2005;
21.5.2.2. increased its authorised share capital of R100 000 to R500 000 by the creation of 400 000 000
ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each on 2 December 2005.

21.5.3.

Wearne has a total authorised share capital of R500 000, comprising 500 000 000 ordinary shares of
0.1 cent each.

21.5.4.

The special resolution to alter the authorised share capital was registered on 20 December 2005.

21.6. Issue of shares
21.6.1.

On incorporation, Wearne issued and allotted 100 000 ordinary par value shares of R1.00 each.

21.6.2.

The company:
21.6.2.1. repurchased 17 375 ordinary shares on 17 February 2005 for R2 500 000;
21.6.2.2. sub-divided its issued share capital of 82 625 ordinary shares of R1.00 each into 82 625 000
ordinary shares of 0.1 cent each;
21.6.2.3. issued 17 375 000 ordinary shares at par on 20 January 2006 to its existing shareholders.

21.6.3.

At the date of issue of this prospectus, before the private placement, Wearne had a total issued share
capital (including share premium) of R100 000 consisting of 100 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.1 cent
each.

21.7. The ordinary resolutions to approve the above issues of shares were implemented at the time of the issues. In terms
of an ordinary resolution approved by 75% of the majority of shareholders passed on 20 January 2006, the directors
have the power to allot and issue ordinary shares of the company for cash, subject to the following conditions:
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−

compliance with the provisions of the Act, the Listings Requirements and the memorandum and articles of
association of Wearne;

−

that the securities be of a class already in issue;

−

that securities be issued to public shareholders and not to related parties;

−

that an announcement giving full details, including the impact on net asset value and earnings per share, be
published at the time of any issue representing, on a cumulative basis within a financial year, 5% or more of the
number of securities in issue prior to the issue/s;

−

that issues in the aggregate in any one financial year shall not exceed 50% of the company's issued share capital
of that class;

−

that, in determining the price at which an issue of securities will be made in terms of this authority, the
maximum discount permitted shall be 10% of the weighted average traded price of those securities over the 30
business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is determined or agreed by the directors; and

−

that the approval will be valid until the next annual general meeting or for 15 months from the date of the
resolution, whichever period is the shorter.

21.8. Unissued shares
In terms of the resolution passed at a general meeting of Wearne on 20 January 2006, after the allotment and
issue of the private placement shares the 375 000 000 authorised but unissued ordinary shares in the company will
be under the control of the directors of Wearne until its first annual general meeting, subject to the provisions of
sections 221 and 222 of the Act and the Listings Requirements.
21.9. Voting and variation of rights
The articles of association of the company provide that, at any general meeting a resolution put to the vote of the
meeting shall be decided on a show of hands, unless a poll is, before or on the declaration of the result of the show
of hands, demanded by any person, the chairman or by the members referred to in section 198(1)(b) of the Act. Any
variation in rights attaching to shares will require the consent of the shareholders in general meeting in accordance
with the company’s articles of association.
21.10. No other listings
The issued ordinary shares of Wearne will be listed on ALTx. No other shares of Wearne are listed on any stock
exchange.

22.

ADEQUACY OF WORKING CAPITAL
22.1. The directors of the company are of the opinion that the working capital available to the Wearne group, prior to the
private placement, is adequate for the present requirements of the Wearne group, i.e. for a period of 12 months
from the date of issue of this prospectus and that:

23.

22.1.1.

the company and the group will be able in the ordinary course of business to pay its debts for a period of
12 months after the date of this prospectus;

22.1.2.

the assets of the company and the group will be in excess of the liabilities of the company and the group
for a period of 12 months after the date of this prospectus. For this purpose, the assets and liabilities
should be recognised and measured in accordance with the accounting policies used in the latest audited
consolidated annual financial statements;

22.1.3.

the share capital and reserves of the company and the group will be adequate for ordinary business
purposes for a period of 12 months after the date of this prospectus;

22.1.4.

the working capital of the company and the group will be adequate for ordinary business purposes for a
period of 12 months after the date of this prospectus.

OPTIONS AND PREFERENTIAL RIGHTS IN RESPECT OF SHARES
Save as disclosed in the share incentive scheme, the salient features of which are set out in Annexure 9, there are no
contracts or arrangements, either actual or proposed, whereby any option or preferential right of any kind has been or will
be given to any person to subscribe for any shares in the company or its subsidiaries.

24.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME
The directors of the company have established a share incentive scheme for the benefit of executive directors and employees
of the group. The salient features are set out in Annexure 9.
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25.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS
25.1. There are no material contracts, which have been entered into by the company during the three years preceding the
date of this prospectus, other than in the ordinary course of business conducted by the group.
25.2. The company is not subject to any management or royalty agreements. The company has not paid any material
technical or secretarial fees during the three years preceding the issue of this prospectus.
25.3. The company has not entered into any promoters’ agreements during the three years preceding the date of this prospectus.

26.

LITIGATION STATEMENT
There are no legal or arbitration proceedings, which may have, or have during the 12 months preceding the date of this
prospectus, had a material effect on the financial position of the group. The company is not aware of any proceedings that
would have a material effect on the financial position of the group or which are pending or threatened against the group.

27.

ADVISERS’ INTERESTS
None of the advisers, whose particulars are set out in the “Corporate Information” section of this prospectus, hold any
shares in the company or have agreed to acquire any shares in the company at the date of this prospectus, except as
disclosed below.
The following directors and employees of the Designated Adviser have an interest in the ordinary shares in Wearne:

Name and capacity
Marius Meyer - Director
Wessel van der Merwe- Director

Number of shares
1 000 000

% holding in
Wearne
0.8%

1 000 000

0.8%

100 000
50 000

0.0%
0.0%

Van Zyl Swanepoel – Employee
Esna Colyn - Employee

Name of beneficial owner
Buccoli Beleggings CC
(Registration number 1995/010698/23)
SA Madiba Investments (Pty) Limited
(Registration number 1998/015202/07)
Van Zyl Swanepoel
Esna Colyn

50% of the ordinary shares in the table above will be held in trust by the auditors as set out in paragraph 5.1.2 in
Annexure 1.

28.

CONSENTS
Each of the company’s advisers and the transfer secretaries have consented in writing to act in the capacities stated
and to their names appearing in this prospectus and have not withdrawn their consent prior to the registration of this
prospectus.

29.

KING CODE
The company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out in Annexure 8.

30.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
The directors, whose names are set out in Annexure 1, collectively and individually, accept full responsibility for the
accuracy of the information given and certify that to the best of their knowledge and belief there are no other facts the
omission of which would make any statement false or misleading and that they have made all reasonable enquiries to
ascertain such facts and that this prospectus contains all information required by law and the Listings Requirements.

31.

DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION
Copies of the following documents which have been submitted to the Registrar will be available for inspection at the
registered office of the company and at Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited’s office, 39 First Road, Hyde Park, 2196, at any
time during normal business hours from 08:30 to 17:00 for a period of 21 days from the date of this prospectus:
- the memorandum and articles of association of the company;
- the signed reports by the independent reporting accountants, the texts of which are set out in
Annexures 3, 5, 6 and 7;
- the written consents of the company’s advisers and transfer secretaries to act in those capacities, which consents have
not been withdrawn prior to registration;
- the company’s share incentive scheme;
- the directors’ service agreements;
- the audited annual financial statements of Wearne and its subsidiaries since February 2003;
- the reviewed interim financial statements of Wearne as at 31 August 2005;
- the irrevocable undertakings referred to in paragraph 10.8 above; and
- a copy of this prospectus.
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32.

PARAGRAPHS OF SCHEDULE 3 TO THE ACT WHICH ARE NOT APPLICABLE
The numbers of the paragraphs in Schedule 3 to the Act, which are not applicable, are:
1(b), 2(d), 6(e)(ii), 6(g), 6(h), 8(b), 8(d), 9(b)(viii), 12(d), 12(e), 14, 17(b), 18(b), 20(b), 21, 24, 26, 27, 28 and 30.

Signed at Johannesburg by Owen Harvey on his own behalf and on behalf of all the directors of the company on 10 February 2006,
he being duly authorised in terms of a power of attorney granted to him by such directors.
SGD
Owen John Garrett Harvey
SGD
For: Samuel John Wearne, herein represented by Owen John Garrett Harvey
under and in terms of a power of attorney executed on 19 January 2006
SGD
For: Jan Christiaan Wearne, herein represented by Owen John Garrett Harvey
under and in terms of a power of attorney executed on 19 January 2006
SGD
For: Barend Johannes Du Toit, herein represented by Owen John Garrett Harvey
under and in terms of a power of attorney executed on 19 January 2006
SGD
For: Bonke Mkhonto, herein represented by Owen John Garrett Harvey under
and in terms of a power of attorney executed on 19 January 2006
SGD
For: Ernest Moloi, herein represented by Owen John Garrett Harvey under and
in terms of a power of attorney executed on 19 January 2006
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Annexure 1

Directors, Executive Management, Appointment, Qualification,
Remuneration and Borrowing Powers of Directors
1.

FULL NAMES, NATIONALITIES, AGES, BUSINESS ADDRESSES AND FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF WEARNE
Director
Samuel John Wearne
Jan Christiaan Wearne
Barend Johannes du Toit
Owen John Garrett Harvey
Bonke Mkhonto *

Age
35
30
55
42
52

Function
Managing director (Chairperson)
Operations director
Quarrying director
Financial director
Non executive director

Ernest Moloi *

50

Non executive director

Business address
Main Road Randfontein, 1759
Main Road Randfontein, 1759
Main Road Randfontein, 1759
Main Road Randfontein, 1759
19 Les Maisons, 18 Sterling
Street, Waverley, 2090
61 Buitfontein, Lanseria, 1748

* Non-executive
All of the directors are South African citizens.

2.

EXPERIENCE OF DIRECTORS
2.1.

John Wearne – Managing Director (Chairperson) B Rek (Stell) Hons B Compt (35)
John is currently the CEO of Wearne. John has a B Rek (Stell) and a Hons B Compt from Unisa. He completed his
articles at Bruk Rosenberg and Co in 1997. John joined Wearne as Financial Manager in 1998, was appointed as
Financial Director in 2000 and as Managing Director in 2003. John is currently the vice-chairman of the South African
Ready Mix Association (SARMA).

2.2.

Chris Wearne – Operations Director (30)
Chris joined Wearne in 1995 as plant supervisor at the stone crushing plant at Kloof Gold Mine. He progressed to
become the plant manager in 1996, area manager for the Gauteng in 1999 taking responsibility for three crusher
plants. He was appointed as Crushing Director in 2000 to manage all of Wearne’s crushing operations. He is currently
the Operations Director and is responsible for all of Wearne’s crushing and transport activities.

2.3.

Owen Harvey - Financial Director – B Acc CA (SA) (42)
Owen completed his articles at Clarke and Patterson in 1988 and obtained his CTA degree at the University of the
Witwatersrand at the same time. He qualified as a Chartered Accountant in 1989 and was invited to join the firm as
an audit partner in 1990. He left in 2003 to join Wearne as Financial Director.

2.4.

Ben du Toit – Quarrying Director (55)
Ben started his crushing career with Pietersburg Crushers in 1973. He joined Wearne in 1976 at the Polokwane
stone quarry and crushing plant. In October 1978 he took up the challenge of Plant Manager at the Bethlehem
quarry and crushing plant. Over the years he has gained valuable experience in drilling, blasting and crushing. In
addition, Ben has much knowledge of environmental management, as well as practical experience with heavy earth
moving equipment and on-road transport vehicles. In 1983 Ben’s involvement with ready mixed concrete began
when Wearne erected a concrete plant in Bethlehem. He has been in charge of the group’s Limpopo and Free State
quarrying operations since 2003.

2.5.

Bonke Mkhonto – Non Executive director (52)
Bonke joined Grinaker Housing in 1990 as a contract manager and when he resigned to start his own business he was
the managing director of Grinaker Housing. From 2001 to 2004 Bonke was the managing director of Jericho Ready
Mixed concrete. In 2005 he started Imisebe Trading CC. Imisebe Trading CC has recently completed 2 500 houses
in Heidelberg in a joint venture with Grinaker-LTA Building. He is currently busy with the construction of 965 units
for the Gauteng Department of Housing in a joint venture with M5 Developments (Pty) Limited, Registration number
2000/004586/07. The total value of the contract is R102 million.

2.6.

Ernest Moloi – Non Executive director – Associate Degree in Engineering from the New York Technical College
USA (50)
Ernest is currently the President of the National Federation for the Building Industry (NAFBI). He was one of the first few
Black South Africans to own and operate a successful civil construction company. He has vast experience and core skills
in civil engineering and management. Ernest’s experience includes road construction, earth works, sewer reticulation,
water reticulation, canal construction, landfill rehabilitation and development and minor concrete constructions.
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3.

4.

QUALIFICATION, APPOINTMENT, REMUNERATION AND BORROWING POWERS OF DIRECTORS
3.1.

The relevant provisions of the articles of association of Wearne relating to qualification, appointment, remuneration
and borrowing powers of directors are set out in paragraph 7 below. The borrowing powers may only be varied by
special resolution, although the members may set limits by way of ordinary resolutions, which limits have not been
exceeded since Wearne’s incorporation.

3.2.

In terms of the declarations lodged by the directors in accordance with Schedule 21 of the Listings Requirements,
none of the following applies to any of the directors listed in paragraph 1 above for the 12 months preceding the date
of this prospectus: bankruptcies or individual voluntary sequestrations; receiverships or compulsory liquidations,
creditors’ voluntary liquidations, administrations, company voluntary liquidations, or any compromise or arrangement
with creditors, partnership voluntary sequestrations; receivership of an asset of a partnership; public criticism;
disqualification by a Court; conviction of any criminal offence.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
4.1.

The remuneration and benefits paid to directors for the year ended 28 February 2005 were as follows:

Year ended
28 February 2005
S J Wearne
J C Wearne
B J Du Toit
O J G Harvey
D D M Wearne

4.2.

Basic
R
540 925
540 925
445 000
445 000
195 000
2 166 850

Incentive
bonus
R
500 000
500 000
74 000
200 000
250 000
1 524 000

Motor
vehicle
R
66 787
41 490
63 924
55 282
227 483

Pension
R
65 508
65 508
53 833
53 833
238 682

Medical
aid
R
31 026
31 026
13 310
20 654
31 023
127 039

Total
R
1 204 246
1 178 949
650 067
774 769
476 023
4 284 054

The remuneration and benefits paid to directors for the six months ended 31 August 2005 were as follows:

Six months ended
31 August 2005
S J Wearne
J C Wearne
B J Du Toit
O J G Harvey
D D M Wearne

Basic
R
282 000
282 000
227 500
227 500
115 000
1 134 000

Incentive
bonus
R
-

Motor
vehicle
R
33 394
25 902
31 962
27 641
118 899

Pension
R
14 100
14 100
11 375
11 375
50 950

Medical
aid
R
16 314
16 314
6 810
10 482
16 314
66 234

Total
R
345 808
338 316
277 647
276 998
131 314
1 370 083

4.3.

There will be no variation in the remuneration receivable by any of the directors as a direct consequence of the
private placement and listing.

4.4.

No payments were made, or accrued as payable, or are proposed to be paid within the three years preceding the
date of the prospectus, either directly or indirectly, in cash or securities or otherwise to:

4.5.

4.4.1.

the directors in respect of management, consulting, technical, secretarial fees or restraint payments;

4.4.2.

a third party in lieu of directors’ fees;

4.4.3.

the directors as an inducement to qualify them as directors.

No director or promoter has any material beneficial interest, direct or indirect, in the promotion of Wearne and in
any property to be acquired or proposed to be acquired by Wearne out of the proceeds of the issue or during the
three years preceding the date of this prospectus.
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5.

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS IN WEARNE
5.1.

The directors, will at the last practicable date and after the private placement hold, directly and indirectly the
following shares in Wearne. There has been and will be a change since the reviewed interims and the date of the
prospectus in the directors’ interests to facilitate the BEE shareholding of the company as disclosed below.
Director

S J Wearne
J C Wearne
O J G Harvey
B J Du Toit
B Mkhonto
E Moloi

5.2.

Number of shares held
Beneficially
Beneficially
Direct
Indirect
15 807 867
12 807 867
3 000 000
33 000
6 250 000
6 250 000
31 648 734
12 500 000

Number of shares held
Non-beneficially
Indirect
-

Percentage held

12.6
10.2
2.4
5.0
5.0
35.2

5.1.1.

No director has or had any interest, directly or indirectly, in any transaction, which is, or was, material to
the business of Wearne and which was effected by the company since incorporation, which remains in any
respect outstanding or unperformed.

5.1.2.

Wearne’s auditors will hold in trust 50% of the shareholding of each director and the Designated Adviser
(“the relevant securities”) in Wearne from the date of listing until the publication of the audited results
for 28 February 2007, after which 50% may be released and the balance one year thereafter and the
required certificate to that effect has been lodged with the JSE by Wearne’s auditors.

5.1.3.

No loans or securities were furnished by Wearne or by any of its subsidiaries to or for the benefit of any
director or manager or any associate of any director or manager of Wearne. The loans to directors as
reflected in the prior year financials have been repaid.

Directors’ service contracts
Each of the directors has a letter of appointment from Wearne, containing such terms as are normal for such
contracts and the terms relating to the remuneration of which are set out in paragraph 4.1 above.

6.
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OTHER DIRECTORSHIPS HELD BY DIRECTORS OF WEARNE AND THE GROUP
Director
John Wearne

Current Directorships/Memberships
Makro Sand (Pty) Limited
Ukuthula Farms CC

Registration number
1973/002406/07
2004/120185/23

Chris Wearne

Makro Sand (Pty) Limited
Ukuthula Farms CC

1973/002406/07
2004/120185/23

Owen Harvey

Hue-Tone Manufacturing (Pty) Limited
Cathkin Chalet Nr 10 Syndicate CC

1986/003191/07
1988/035902/23

Bonke Mkhonto

Mobiecrete (Pty) Limited
Mafika-Mantsho Property Development (Pty) Limited
Jericho Construction (Pty) Limited
Jericho Ready Mix Concrete Pietersburg (Pty) Limited
Lefika Ready Mix Concrete (Pty) Limited
MHE group Secunda (Pty) Limited
Millenium Consulting (Pty) Limited
Randcrete (Pty) Limited
Tswane ReadyMix (Pty) Limited
Jericho Housing (Pty) Limited
Millenium Pre-Cast (Pty) Limited
Jericho Holdings (Pty) Limited
Midcrete CC

2001/005195/07
2002/031396/07
2001/005082/07
2001/019682/07
2002/019221/07
2000/029536/07
2000/029865/07
2000/025110/07
2001/005079/07
2001/005294/07
2001/005085/07
2001/005292/07
1997/022530/23

Ernest Moloi

Alohmec (Pty) Limited
Barzani 17 (Pty) Limited
Khandubuhle Investments (Pty) Limited
Lefika North Construction CC
Lefika Road Construction CC
MPA Bricks and Blocks (Pty) Limited
Mmetlatshipi Investments (Pty) Limited

1997/015224/07
2004/025255/07
2000/001202/07
1990/012958/23
2001/002610/23
2005/022019/07
2002/012338/07

Moloi an Molobi Building Construction CC
Moseme Aircondtioning and Refrigeration (Pty) Limited
Moseme Capital Services (Pty) Limited
Moseme Health SA (Pty) Limited
Moseme Investment Holdings (Pty) Limited
Moseme Landpac (Pty) Limited
Moseme Maxim B (Pty) Limited
Moseme Mineral and Energy (Pty) Limited
Moseme Road Construction CC
Moseme Wine and Spirits (Pty) Limited
Moseme-Shatadi Technology (Pty) Limited
Royal Albatross Properties 14 (Pty) Limited
Soweto National Development and
Empowerment Company (Pty) Limited
SWH Moseme Trucks (Pty) Limited
Westside Trading 520 (Pty) Limited

1996/026203/23
2002/030016/07
2003/000352/07
2003/001570/07
1997/017840/07
2003/011257/07
2003/011237/07
2002/014282/07
1999/037550/23
2002/029350/07
2000/008710/07
2004/022267/07
1999/025514/07
2005/038497/07
2005/039305/07

None of the other directors are directors of any other companies.

7.

RELEVANT PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY PROVIDING FOR THE
APPOINTMENT, QUALIFICATION, REMUNERATION AND BORROWING POWERS OF DIRECTORS
Extracts from the articles of association of Wearne are set out below:

DIRECTORS - NUMBER, QUALIFICATION AND REMUNERATION
89. The number of directors shall be not less than four.
90. A director shall not be obliged to hold any qualification shares.
91. The remuneration of the directors for their services as such shall be determined from time to time by a general
meeting.
92. The directors shall be paid all travelling, subsistence, and other expenses properly incurred by them in the execution
of their duties in or about the business of the company and which are authorised or ratified by a disinterested quorum
of the directors, which may be in addition to or in substitution for any other remuneration.

ALTERNATE DIRECTORS
93. Each director shall have the power to appoint any person to act as alternate director in his place during his absence
or inability to act as such, and at his discretion to remove such alternate director, and to appoint another in his stead,
provided that the appointment of such alternate director shall be made in writing and approved by the directors. On
such appointment being made and approved, the alternate director shall (except as regards the power to appoint
an alternate and remuneration) in all respects be subject to the terms and conditions existing with reference to the
other directors of the company and each alternate director, whilst so acting, shall be entitled to receive notice of all
meetings of the directors or of any committee of the directors of which his appointer is a member, and to attend and
vote at any such meeting at which his appointer is not personally present. The alternate shall generally be entitled
to exercise and discharge all the functions, powers and duties of his appointer in such appointer’s absence as if he
were a director. The remuneration of an alternate director shall be payable only out of the remuneration payable to
the director appointing him and he shall have no claim against the company for such remuneration.
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94. The appointment of an alternate director shall be cancelled and the alternate director shall cease to hold office on the
happening of any event which, if he were a director, would cause him to cease to hold office in terms of these articles,
or if the director who appointed him shall cease to be a director or shall give notice in writing to the secretary that
the alternate director representing him shall have ceased to do so. In the event of the disqualification or resignation
of any alternate director during the absence or inability to act of the director whom he represents, the vacancy so
arising shall be filled by the chairman of the directors who shall appoint a person to fill such vacancy subject to the
approval of the board. A director retiring at any general meeting and being re-elected shall not for the purposes of
this article, be deemed to have ceased to be a director. However, any appointment of a director as an addition to the
board shall be confirmed at the next annual general meeting.
95. A person may be appointed as alternate to more than one director and where a person is alternate to more than one
director, or where an alternate director is a director, he shall have a separate vote, on behalf of each director he is
representing, in addition to his own vote, if any.

GENERAL POWERS OF DIRECTORS
96. The management of the business and the control of the company shall be vested in the directors who, in addition to
the powers and authorities by these articles expressly conferred upon them, may exercise all such powers, and do all
such acts and things as may be exercised or done by the company and are not hereby or by the Act expressly directed
or required to be exercised or done by the company in general meeting, but subject nevertheless, to such management
and control not being inconsistent with these articles nor with any resolution passed at any general meeting of the
members in accordance therewith. No resolution passed by the company in general meeting shall invalidate any prior
act of the directors which would have been valid if such resolution had not been passed. The general powers given
by this article shall not be limited or restricted by any special authority or power given to the directors by any other
article.
97. Although the directors shall have power, pursuant to section 228 of the Act, to enter into a provisional contract for
the sale or alienation of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the company, or the whole or the
greater part of the assets of the company, such contract shall only become binding on the company in the event of the
specific transaction proposed by the directors being authorised or ratified in terms of a resolution passed by a majority
of the votes cast at a general meeting convened for that purpose. All the provisions of these articles as to general
meetings shall apply mutatis mutandis to meetings convened under this article for such purposes.

PAYMENTS TO SHAREHOLDERS
98. Subject to the provisions of section 90 of the Act (and, if applicable, any relevant regulations and/or requirements of
the JSE), the company is hereby authorised to make payments to its shareholders.

BORROWING POWERS
99. The directors may exercise all the powers of the company to borrow money and to mortgage or encumber its
undertaking, property or any part thereof and to issue debentures or debenture stock, whether secured or unsecured,
and other securities (with such special privileges, if any, as to allotment of shares or stock, attending and voting at
general meetings, appointment of directors or otherwise as may be sanctioned by a general meeting) whether outright
or as security for any debt, liability or obligation of the company or of any third party.
100. For the purpose of the provisions of article 99, the borrowing powers of the directors shall be unlimited.
101. Subject to article 105, the directors may give pensions, gratuities and allowances to and make payments for or
towards the insurance of any employees or ex-employees, including directors or ex-directors, of the company, or of
any company which is or was a subsidiary of the company or is or was in any way allied to or associated with it or any
such subsidiary, and the wives, widows, families and dependants of such persons and may establish and maintain any
non-contributory pension, superannuation, provident and benefit funds for the benefit of any such persons and make
contributions to any such funds and pay premiums for the purchase of any such gratuity, pension, allowance, life
assurance or other benefit.

LOCAL BOARDS, AGENTS AND COMMISSIONS OF THE BOARD
102. The directors may establish any local boards, committees or agencies in the Republic or elsewhere for managing any
of the affairs of the company and may 102.1
appoint any persons to be members of such local boards or committees, or any managers or agents;
102.2
fix the remuneration of the persons referred to in article 102.1;
102.3
delegate to any local board, committee, manager or agent any of the powers, authorities and discretions
vested in the directors with power to sub-delegate;
102.4
authorise the members of any local board or committee or any of them, to fill any vacancies therein and to
act notwithstanding vacancies.
Any such appointment or delegation may be made upon such terms and subject to such conditions as the directors may
think fit, and the directors may remove any person so appointed, or annul or vary any such delegation, but no person
dealing in good faith and without notice of any such annulment or variation shall be affected thereby.
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103. The directors may by power of attorney appoint any company, firm or person or any fluctuating body of persons,
whether nominated directly or indirectly by the directors, to be the attorney or agent of the company for such
purposes and with such powers, authorities and discretions (not exceeding those vested in or exercisable by the
directors under these articles) and for such period and subject to such conditions as they may think fit. Any such
power of attorney may contain such provisions for the protection and convenience of persons dealing with any such
attorney as the directors think fit, and may also authorise any such attorney to sub-delegate all or any of the powers,
authorities and discretions vested in him or them.
104. The directors may delegate any of their powers to an executive or other committee whether consisting of a member
of their body or not as they think fit. Any committee so formed shall, in the exercise of the powers so delegated,
conform to any regulations that may from time to time be imposed on it by the directors and any such regulations may
authorise the appointment of sub-committees.

MANAGING AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
105. A disinterested quorum of directors may from time to time appoint one or more of their body to be managing director,
assistant managing director, general manager or executive director (with or without specific designation) of the
company or to any other executive office with the company for such period and, subject to the provisions of section
225 of the Act, at such remuneration (whether by way of salary, commission or participation in profits, or partly in
one way and partly in another) and generally on such terms as they may think fit, and may, subject to any contract
between him or them and the company, from time to time terminate his or their appointment and appoint another or
others in his or their place or places.
106. A managing director may be appointed by a disinterested quorum of directors and he shall not be subject to retirement
by rotation or be taken into account in determining the rotation or retirement of directors, except during the period
of any such appointment, provided that less than half of the directors may be appointed managing directors on
the condition that they shall not be subject to retirement by rotation. Subject to the terms of his appointment, a
managing director shall be subject to the same provisions as to removal as the other directors, and if he ceases to hold
the office of director for any reason, he shall ipso facto cease to be a managing director.
107. A disinterested quorum of directors may from time to time entrust to and confer upon a director appointed to any
position or executive office under article 105 such of the powers exercisable under these articles by the directors as
they think fit, and may confer such powers for such time, and to be exercised for such objects and purposes and upon
such terms and conditions and with such restrictions, as they think expedient, and they may confer such powers either
collaterally with or to the exclusion of and in substitution for all or any of the powers of the directors in that behalf,
and may from time to time revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any of such powers.

CASUAL VACANCIES
108. Without prejudice to the powers of the company in general meeting to appoint any person to be a director, a
disinterested quorum of directors shall have power at any time and from time to time to appoint any person to be
a director, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the existing board, but so that the total number of
directors shall not at any time exceed the maximum number, if any, fixed by or in accordance with these articles. Any
director so appointed shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible
for re-election. The appointment of a director to fill a casual vacancy shall therefore be confirmed at the next annual
general meeting.

DISQUALIFICATION AND PRIVILEGES OF DIRECTORS
109. The office of a director shall ipso facto be terminated and vacated if the director 109.1
ceases to be a director by virtue of any of the provisions of the Act, or is disqualified from acting as, or
becomes prohibited from being a director by reason of any order made under the Act; or
109.2
files a petition for the surrender of his estate, or an application for an administration order, or if his estate
is sequestrated, or if he commits an act of insolvency as defined in the insolvency law for the time being in
force or if he makes any arrangement, compromise or composition with his creditors generally; or
109.3
is found to be lunatic or becomes of unsound mind; or
109.4
is removed by a resolution of the company in terms of section 220 of the Act with effect from the date of, or
such later date as is provided for in, such resolution; or
109.5
resigns his office by notice in writing to the company with effect from the date of, or such later date as is
provided for in, such notice; or
109.6
absents himself from meetings of directors for six consecutive months without special leave of absence from
the other directors who resolve that his office shall be vacated, provided that this provision shall not apply
to a director who is represented by an alternate who does not so absent himself; or
109.7
becomes retired in terms of articles 117 to 124 inclusive.
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110. No director or prospective director shall be disqualified by his office from contracting with the company either as
vendor, purchaser, lender, underwriter, guarantor for commission or profit on any shares or securities or liability of
the company, or of any company in which the company may be interested, or in any other manner whatsoever. No
such contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the company in which any director shall be in any way
interested, nor any contract or agreement entered into with any company or partnership of or in which any director
shall be a member, director or partner or otherwise interested, shall be or be liable to be invalidated or voided by
any such reason or by reason of the board of directors of the company not constituting an independent executive or
disinterested quorum.
111. Any director so contracting or being so interested or acquiring any benefit under any contract or arrangement made
or entered into by or on behalf of any person, company or partnership in relation to the affairs of the company shall
not be liable to account to the company for any profits or benefits realised by or under such contract or arrangement
by reason of such director holding that office or by reason of the fiduciary relationship thereby established.
112. Any director so interested or acquiring any such benefits shall not be entitled to vote at any board meeting or
otherwise in relation to such contract.
113. Notwithstanding the aforegoing, any director so interested or acquiring any such benefit shall disclose the fact of
his possessing any interest, whether as director or member or otherwise, whether or not it appears on the face of
the contract or arrangement, in accordance with the provisions of sections 234 and 240 of the Act. Subject to the
provisions of section 234(3) of the Act and the Listing Requirements of the JSE, a general notice in writing given to
the directors by a director to the effect that he is a member of a specified company or firm and is to be regarded
as interested in any contract which may, after the date of the notice, be made with that company or firm, shall be
deemed to be a sufficient disclosure in relation to any contract or proposed contract so made or to be made.
114. Without detracting from the generality of articles 110 to 113 inclusive, a director (and, in the case of article 113 any
firm of which he is a member) may, subject to the provisions of the Act 114.1
be employed by or hold any other office or place of profit in the company, or any holding or subsidiary company
of the company or any company controlled by the company, other than that of auditor, in conjunction with his
directorship, and upon such terms as to appointment, and subject to the provisions of section 225 of the Act,
remuneration and tenure of office and otherwise as a disinterested quorum of directors may determine;
114.2
act in a professional capacity for the company, and he or such firm shall be entitled to remuneration for those
professional services as if he were not a director, provided that nothing herein contained shall authorise a
director or any firm of which he is a member, to act as auditor of the company or of any holding or subsidiary
company of the company;
114.3
be or become a director of any subsidiary or other company promoted by the company or in which it may be
interested as vendor, shareholder or otherwise;
114.4
represent the company in the management of any business operation or concern in which the company may
be interested as a partner or otherwise.
115. Notwithstanding any such interest, any such director may be counted in the quorum present at any meeting at which
any such matter is being considered and vote thereon as though he had no interest therein, and no such director
shall be accountable to the company for any remuneration, profit, gain or other benefit received in any capacity as
aforesaid, subject to the Listings Requirements of the JSE.
116. Any voting power conferred by the shares in a company referred to in article 114.2, or exercisable by the directors as
directors of such company, may be exercised by the directors in such manner in all respects as they think fit, including
the exercise thereof in favour of any resolution appointing themselves or any of them directors or other officers of
such company. Any director may vote in favour of the exercise of such voting rights in such manner, notwithstanding
that he may be, or about to be, appointed a director or other officer of such company and as such, or in any other
manner, is or may become interested in the exercise of such voting rights in the manner aforesaid, save that any
resolution relating to the payment of remuneration to the directors or officers of such company shall be voted on by
a disinterested quorum of directors.

ROTATION OF DIRECTORS AND REMOVAL
117. At each annual general meeting of the company one-third of the directors, or if their number is not a multiple of three
then the number nearest thereto, but not less than one-third shall retire from office, provided that in determining the
number of directors to retire no account shall be taken of any director who by reason of the provisions of article 106
is not subject to retirement. The directors so to retire at each annual general meeting shall, subject to any provision
to the contrary in these articles, be the directors who have been longest in office. As between two or more directors
who have been in office an equal length of time, the directors to retire shall, in default of agreement between them
be determined by lot. The length of time a director has been in office shall be computed from the date of his last
election or appointment. A retiring director shall hold office until the conclusion of the meeting at which he retires.
118. Notwithstanding the above, if a director is appointed a managing director, or as an employee of the company in any
other capacity, the contract under which he is appointed may provide that he shall not, while he continues to hold
that position or office under contract for a term of rotation, be subject to retirement by such contract and he/she
shall not in such case be taken into account in determining the rotation or retirement of directors, provided that less
than half of the directors may be appointed to any such position.
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119. Retiring directors shall be eligible for re-election. No person other than a retiring director shall be eligible for election
to the office of director at any annual general meeting unless he, or some member intending to propose him, has at
least seven clear days before the meeting left at the office a notice in writing, duly signed, signifying his candidature
for that office or the intention of such member to propose him. The power to elect directors at general meetings other
than annual general meetings shall be exercisable only when special notice has been given of the intended resolution
exercising such power.
120. Subject to article 116, the company in general meeting at which any directors retire in the manner aforesaid may,
subject to any resolution reducing the number of directors, fill the vacated offices by electing a like number of persons
to be directors, and may fill any other vacancies.
121. If, at any general meeting at which an election of directors ought to take place, the place of any retiring director is
not filled, he shall continue in office until the dissolution of the annual general meeting in the next year, and so on
from year to year until his place is filled, unless it shall be determined at such meeting to reduce the number of the
directors.
122. Subject to the provisions of section 220 of the Act, the company may by ordinary resolution remove any director and
elect another person in his stead.
123. The company may by ordinary resolution in general meeting from time to time increase or reduce the number of
directors and may also determine in what manner or rotation such increased or reduced number is to go out of office.
Whenever such increase is made the members at the said meeting, or failing them, the directors, may fill the new
seats so created. The appointment of any director to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the board must be
confirmed at the next annual general meeting.
124. No appointment of a director, except that of a retiring director, re-elected at an annual general meeting or a general
meeting, shall take effect until consent of such director to act as a director of the company has been lodged with the
company.

PROCEEDINGS OF DIRECTORS’ MEETINGS
125. The directors may meet for the despatch of business, adjourn and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think
fit, and may determine the quorum necessary for the transaction of business, what period of notice shall be given of
meetings of directors and the means of giving such notice. Until otherwise determined, the quorum necessary for the
transaction of the business of the directors shall be three.
126. The continuing directors may act notwithstanding any casual vacancy in their body, so long as there remain four
directors duly qualified to act, but if the number falls below four the remaining director or directors shall have the
power to call a general meeting in order to fill such casual vacancy, and except for the purpose of filling such vacancy
the director or directors shall not act so long as the number is below four.
127. A director at any time may, and the secretary upon the request of a director shall, convene a meeting of the directors.
If there is no director able and willing to act then any two members may summon a general meeting for the purpose
of appointing directors. A director who is not within the Republic shall not be entitled to notice of any such meeting,
but notice shall be given to all duly appointed alternate directors who may at the time be within the Republic.
128. A director unable to attend a directors’ meeting may authorise any other director to vote for him at that meeting, and
the director so authorised shall have a vote for each director by whom he is so authorised in addition to his own vote. If
both the director so authorised and an alternate of the director who granted the authority are present at the meeting,
the alternate shall not be entitled to vote on behalf of the absent director. Authority in terms of this article must be
in writing (including a telegram or facsimile or e-mail transmission) and must be handed to the person presiding at the
meeting at which it is to be used.
129. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a majority of votes, and in case of an equality of votes, the
chairman shall not have a second or casting vote.
130. The directors may elect a chairman of their meetings and one or more deputy chairmen to preside in the absence of
the chairman, and may determine a period (not exceeding one year) for which they are to hold office. If no such
chairman or deputy chairman is elected or if at any meeting neither the chairman nor the deputy chairman is present
within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the directors shall choose one of their number
to be chairman of such meeting.
131. A meeting of the directors at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or any of the authorities,
powers and discretions by or under these articles or the regulations of the company for the time being vested in or
exercisable by the directors generally.
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132. A resolution in writing signed by all the directors for the time being present in the Republic and being not less than
are sufficient to form a quorum, shall, subject to the provisions of sections 236 and 242(2) of the Act, be as valid
and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the directors duly called and constituted, provided that where
a director is not so present but has an alternate who is so present, then such resolution must be signed by such
alternate. Any such resolution may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more directors
or their alternates, if applicable, and shall be deemed to have been passed on the date on which it was signed by the
last director who signed it, or on such other date as such resolution may direct.

VALIDITY OF ACTS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES
133. As regards all persons dealing in good faith with the company, all acts done by any meeting of the directors or of a
committee of directors, or by any person acting as a director in terms of these articles, shall notwithstanding that
it be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment or continuance in office of such director
or person acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified or had ceased to hold office or were not
entitled to vote, be as valid as if every such person had been duly appointed or was qualified or had continued to be
a director or was entitled to vote, as the case may be.
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Annexure 2

Historical financial information of Wearne
The definitions commencing on page 8 of this prospectus have been used in this report.
The following has been extracted from the group’s audited financial statements for the years ended 28 February 2003, 29 February
2004 and 28 February 2005. Adjustments have been made to the previously reported information in order to comply with
environmental rehabilitation requirements as disclosed more fully in note 21 below. The independent reporting accountants report
on the historical information is set out in annexure 3.
The Wearne Independent Reporting Accountants’ report on the historical financial information of the company for the years
ended 28 February 2003, 28 February 2004 and 28 February 2005, issued without qualification is set out in Annexure 3 of the
prospectus.

FINANCIAL STATEMENT COMMENTARY
SHARE CAPITAL
17 375 Shares were repurchased from shareholders during 2005 at a cost of R2 500 000.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The company and its subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture, marketing and transport of crushed stone, sand and ready mixed
concrete in the Gauteng, North West, Free State and Limpopo Provinces.
The average number of employees employed by the group during the period amounted to approximately 350.
GENERAL REVIEW
The group’s business and operations, and the results thereof, are reflected in the attached financial statements and no other fact
or circumstance material to a fair assessment of the financial position of the group has occurred.
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The group acquired the entire issued capital of Wearne Logistics from S.J. Wearne and J.C. Wearne, directors of Wearne, and The
Samant Trust, a shareholder in Wearne, for the amount of R3 million, with effect from 1 March 2005. Wearne Logistics carries out
transport services for the group.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
There have been no major changes in the property, plant and equipment of the group during the period or any changes in the policy
relating to their use, other than as disclosed in the historical financial information.
DIVIDENDS
A gross dividend of R3 305 000 amounting to R40 per share was declared by the company in respect of the year ended 28 February
2005, which dividend was payable to shareholders registered on 28 February 2005. Dividends of R1 and R10 per share were
declared on 28 February 2003 and 27 February 2004 respectively.
GROUP STRUCTURE
The group consists of Wearne and the following subsidiaries and special purpose entities:

Noordvaal Crushers (Pty) Limited
The WG Wearne Rehabilitation Trust

Issued
Capital
R

% Held
by Group
%

16 000

100

-

-
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
The consolidated balance sheets of the group as at 28 February 2003, 29 February 2004 and 28 February 2005 are set out below.

2005

2004

2003

R

R

R

35 604 426

29 137 454

29 813 712

2,8

34 225 375

28 558 327

29 387 867

3

1 379 051

579 127

425 845

34 874 272

30 317 983

26 107 633

9 299 509

3 552 341

1 370 523

24 248 380

23 073 312

24 143 115

1 311 197

3 479 156

-

Notes
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment
Unlisted Investments
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

5

Accounts Receivable
Loans to Directors and Entities Controlled by Directors

4

Taxation

-

-

297 915

Bank and Cash

15 186

213 174

296 080

TOTAL ASSETS

70 478 698

59 455 437

55 921 345

19 361 220

14 838 704

12 834 537

82 625

100 000

100 000

19 278 595

14 738 704

12 734 537

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Issued Capital

6

Accumulated Profits
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

15 261 025

17 359 795

20 127 694

Shareholders’ Loans

7

314 933

607 002

100 767

Environmental Obligation

8

5 056 719

4 682 148

4 335 324

Instalment Sale Creditors

9

6 734 282

9 601 682

13 800 158

Deferred Taxation

10

3 155 091

2 468 963

1 891 445

35 856 453

27 256 938

22 959 114

19 365 200

17 726 286

15 585 093

7 084 427

6 806 291

5 013 330

437 176

270 185

100 000

4 131 152

325 512

-

4 838 498

2 128 664

2 260 691

70 478 698

59 455 437

55 921 345

Weighted average no of shares in issue

99 476

100 000

100 000

Net asset value per share (cents)

19 361

14 839

12 835

Net tangible asset value per share (cents)

19 361

14 839

12 835

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Current Portion of Non-current Liabilities

9

Short Term Loans
Taxation
Bank Overdraft
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
The consolidated income statements of the group for the years ended 28 February 2003, 29 February 2004 and 28 February 2005
are set out below.

Notes
REVENUE

14

COST OF INVENTORIES EXPENSED
GROSS PROFIT
OTHER INCOME

2005

2004

2003

R

R

R

175 403 443

147 201 505

131 379 525

(129 841 819)

(117 585 833)

(109 227 619)

45 561 624

29 615 672

22 151 906

6 225 706

3 732 519

4 686 596

(27 603 239)

(19 739 207)

(15 789 629)

EBITDA

24 184 091

13 608 984

11 048 873

DEPRECIATION

(7 270 104)

(6 713 762)

(4 685 509)

PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION

16 913 987

6 895 222

6 363 364

NET INTEREST PAID

(1 417 790)

(2 517 368)

(1 203 948)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

15 496 197

4 377 854

5 159 416

TAXATION

(5 185 707)

(1 395 330)

(1 369 444)

EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

10 310 490

2 982 524

3 789 972

2 295 824

1 032 430

2 532 789

Profit on Disposal of Land and Buildings

-

230 511

-

Profit on Sale of Investment in Subsidiary

-

403 240

-

300 729

413 897

262 115

300 000

290 000

283 500

300 000

290 000

283 500

OPERATING EXPENSES

Profit before tax above is disclosed after crediting:
Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

Interest Received
and after charging:
Auditors’ Remuneration
Audit Fees
Directors’ Emoluments

4 284 054

1 587 696

1 363 671

4 284 054

1 587 696

1 363 671

1 718 519

2 931 265

1 466 063

Operating Lease Costs

88 507

169 590

109 324

Weighted average no of shares in issue

99 476

100 000

100 000

Basic earnings per share (cents)

10 365

2 983

3 790

For Managerial Services
Finance Costs

Profit on Disposal of Investments (after Tax) (cents)
Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (after Tax)
(cents)

15.1

-

(396)

-

(1 724)

(1 012)

(2 044)

Headline earnings per share (cents)

8 641

1 575

1 746

Dividend per share (cents)

3 322

1 000

100
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
The consolidated statements of changes in equity of the group for the years ended 28 February 2003, 29 February 2004 and
28 February 2005 are set out below.

Balance at 1 March 2002

Share Capital
R

Accumulated
Profits
R

Total
R

100 000

10 983 796

11 083 796

-

2 538 955

2 538 955

Adjustments Decommissioning and Quarry Rehabilitation Assets raised
Deferred Tax thereon

-

(761 686)

(761 686)

Environmental Obligations raised

-

(4 014 189)

(4 014 189)

Rehabilitation Trust Investments previously expensed
Balance at 1 March 2002 restated
Net Profit for the year

-

365 345

365 345

100 000

9 112 221

9 212 221

-

3 789 972

3 789 972

Dividend Paid

-

(100 000)

(100 000)

Fair Value Adjustment to Investment

-

(67 656)

(67 656)

Balance at 28 February 2003

100 000

12 734 537

12 834 537

Net Profit for the year

-

2 982 524

2 982 524

Fair Value Adjustment to Investment

-

21 643

21 643

Dividend Paid

-

Balance at 29 February 2004

100 000

Shares repurchased

(17 375)

Premium on Share Capital repurchased

(1 000 000)

(1 000 000)

14 738 704

14 838 704

(2 482 625)

(2 482 625)
10 310 490

Net Profit for the year

-

10 310 490

Fair Value Adjustment to Investment

-

17 026

Dividend Paid

-

Balance at 28 February 2005
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(17 375)

-

82 625

(3 305 000)
19 278 595

17 026
(3 305 000)
19 361 220

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
The consolidated cash flow statements of the group for the years ended 28 February 2003, 29 February 2004 and 28 February 2005
are set out below.

2005
Notes

2004

2003

R

R

R

11 562 787

9 910 292

3 500 310

15 496 197

4 377 854

5 159 416

Net Interest Paid

1 417 790

2 517 368

1 203 948

Depreciation

7 270 104

6 713 762

4 685 509

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit Before Taxation

(2 295 824)

(1 262 941)

(2 532 789)

Operating Profit before Changes in Working Capital

Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

21 888 267

12 346 043

8 516 084

Changes in Working Capital Items

(5 283 322)

929 178

(3 002 695)

Inventories

(5 747 168)

(2 181 818)

Accounts Receivable

(1 175 068)

1 069 803

(5 146 282)

1 638 914

2 041 193

2 453 551

Cash Generated from Operations

16 604 945

13 275 221

5 513 389

Less -

(5 042 158)

(3 364 929)

(2 013 079)

Accounts Payable

Interest Received

300 729

Interest Paid

413 897

(309 964)

262 115

(1 343 948)

(2 584 441)

(1 144 928)

Dividends Paid

20.1

(3 305 000)

(1 000 000)

(100 000)

Taxation Paid

20.2

(693 939)

(194 385)

(1 030 266)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Unlisted Investments
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Share Capital
Premium on Shares Repurchased
Non-current Loans

(11 424 226)

(4 752 920)

(12 555 826)

(13 992 551)

(7 534 167)

(15 753 501)

3 351 223

2 912 886

3 325 831

(782 898)

(131 639)

(3 046 383)

(5 108 251)

(128 156)
9 820 494

(17 375)

-

-

(2 482 625)

-

-

(546 383)

(5 108 251)

NET CASH INFLOWS (OUTFLOWS)

(2 907 822)

BANK AND CASH BALANCES at start of year

(1 915 490)

(1 964 611)

(2 729 589)

(4 823 312)

(1 915 490)

(1 964 611)

BANK AND CASH BALANCES at end of year

20.3

49 121

9 820 494
764 978

41

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The notes to the consolidated historical financial information of the group for the years ended 28 February 2003, 29 February 2004
and 28 February 2005 are set out below.

1

ACCOUNTING BASIS
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis modified by the restatement of financial instruments to
fair value and incorporate the following principal accounting policies, which are consistent with those of the previous year
and comply with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.
1.1

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost. Cost includes all costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to
a working condition for their intended use.
Land is not depreciated.
Depreciation is recorded by a charge to income computed on a straight line basis so as to write off the cost of the
assets over their estimated useful lives. For buildings, when the cost is less than the estimated residual value, no
depreciation is provided. The annual depreciation rate applicable to each category of fixed assets is as follows:-

1.2

Land

-

No depreciation provided

Buildings

-

20 years

Plant and Equipment

-

5 years

Rehabilitation Assets

-

7-8 years

Motor Vehicles

-

5 years

Office Furniture

-

10 years

Workshop Equipment

-

7 years

Office Equipment

-

5 years

Computer Equipment

-

3 years

Computer Software

-

2 years

Production Vehicles

-

5 years

Readymix Vehicles

-

5 years

Transport Vehicles

-

5 years

Site Buildings

-

5 years

Laboratory Equipment

-

5 years

Service Vehicles

-

5 years

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on a first-in first-out basis.
Where necessary, provision is made for obsolete, slow moving and defective stock.

1.3

Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities in the historical financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the computation of
taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill (or negative goodwill) or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

1.4

Revenue Recognition
Sales are recorded in the financial statements at the date the goods are delivered to customers or services are
performed.

1.5

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are charged against income in the period in which they are incurred.
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1.6

Retirement Benefits
The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is available to all eligible employees. The plan is actuarially valued
and is funded by group and employee contributions. The plan is governed by the Pension Funds Act and is managed
by a major insurance company. The accounting costs are assessed using the accrued benefit valuation method.
The Group does not provide post-retirement healthcare benefits for employees.

1.7

Cash Flows
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, bank and cash balances include cash on hand, deposits held on call with
banks, investment in money market instruments and bank overdrafts.

1.8

Decommissioning and Quarry Rehabilitation
Group companies are required to restore quarry and processing sites at the end of their productive lives to a
condition acceptable to the relevant authorities. This future liability was not accounted for by the Group in the
historical financial statements, since a rehabilitation trust fund had been established at the request of the regulatory
authorities, and annual contributions had been made to the trust as required, in order for the ultimate rehabilitation
cost to be provided for at the end of the of the useful life of the site. These contributions were previously expensed.
The requirements of the accounting standards for property, plant and equipment and provisions with respect to
decommissioning and site rehabilitation have now been correctly complied with retrospectively and the historical
financial information has been restated accordingly. The effects of the required adjustments on the historical
financial information have been separately disclosed in note 21 below.
Quantifying the future costs of these obligations is complex and requires various estimates to be made thereof,
as well as interpretations of and decisions regarding regulatory requirements, particularly with respect to the
degree of rehabilitation required, with reference to the sensitivity of the environmental area surrounding the
sites. Consequently, the guidelines issued for quantifying the future rehabilitation cost of a site, as issued by the
Department of Mineral and Energy, have been used to estimate future rehabilitation costs.
The expected cost of any decommissioning and rehabilitation program, discounted to its net present value, has been
capitalized at current date and amortised over the estimated remaining useful life of the asset. The increase or
decrease in the net present value of the provision for the expected cost is included with finance costs. The current
provision has been discounted to retrospectively adjust the historical financial information.

1.9

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Classification is made at the inception
of the leases.

1.10

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation. Where the effect of discounting to present value is material,
provisions are adjusted to reflect the time value of money. This would apply to the environmental obligations.

1.11

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company, its subsidiaries and
special purpose entities that, in substance, are controlled by the group. Results of subsidiaries are included from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal. All significant transactions and balances between
group enterprises are eliminated on consolidation.
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2

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2.1

Consists of the following items:

OWNED ASSETS
Land and Buildings

Carrying
Value
R

2004
Cost Accumulated
Price Depreciation
R
R

Carrying
Value
R

3 697 273

-

3 697 273

3 720 733

-

3 720 733

Plant and Equipment

24 222 421

15 758 786

8 463 635

18 031 798

15 046 895

2 984 903

Rehabilitation Assets

3 329 406

1 456 331

1 873 075

3 329 406

1 234 371

2 095 035

Motor Vehicles

3 614 512

1 683 110

1 931 402

3 583 620

1 089 277

2 494 343

167 844

76 761

91 083

125 476

65 074

60 402

Office Furniture
Workshop Equipment

576 872

288 823

288 049

397 520

252 307

145 213

Office Equipment

762 227

388 736

373 491

557 344

286 504

270 840

1 294 340

470 881

823 459

734 364

311 341

423 023

Computer Equipment
Computer Software

704 329

582 976

121 353

547 121

515 124

31 997

Production Vehicles

23 320 012

14 749 715

8 570 297

23 731 505

13 409 129

10 322 376

Readymix Vehicles

20 582 541

14 932 794

5 649 747

19 173 435

14 410 294

4 763 141

Transport Vehicles

3 722 746

3 444 953

277 793

3 798 724

3 573 946

224 778

881 570

73 850

807 720

871 110

66 950

804 160

94 340

15 194

79 146

-

-

-

845 613

646 801

198 812

757 260

589 254

168 006

49 377

-

49 377

Site Buildings
Laboratory Equipment
Service Vehicles
Plant under Construction

OWNED ASSETS
Land and Buildings

979 040

-

979 040

88 795 086

54 569 711

34 225 375

79 408 793 50 850 466 28 558 327

Cost
Price
R

2003
Accumulated
Depreciation
R

Carrying
Value
R

4 901 985

-

4 901 985

Plant and Equipment

17 111 168

14 146 366

2 964 802

Rehabilitation Assets

3 329 406

1 012 411

2 316 995

Motor Vehicles

2 570 726

988 717

1 582 009

148 799

113 632

35 167

Office Furniture
Workshop Equipment

278 748

230 679

48 069

Office Equipment

265 462

190 988

74 474

Computer Equipment

514 340

199 962

314 378

Computer Software

507 852

490 786

17 066

Production Vehicles

21 058 888

10 606 375

10 452 513

Readymix Vehicles

19 662 796

13 642 348

6 020 448

Transport Vehicles

3 602 701

3 405 966

196 735
370 003

Site Buildings

431 307

61 304

Service Vehicles

562 517

562 457

60

1 191 784

1 098 621

93 163

76 138 479

46 750 612

29 387 867

Farm Implements
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2005
Cost Accumulated
Price Depreciation
R
R

2.2

The carrying amounts can be reconciled as follows:

2005
Carrying Value
Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Rehabilitation Assets
Motor Vehicles
Office Furniture
Workshop Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Computer Software
Production Vehicles
Readymix Vehicles
Transport Vehicles
Site Buildings
Laboratory Equipment
Service Vehicles
Plant under Construction
2004
Carrying Value
Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Rehabilitation Assets
Motor Vehicles
Office Furniture
Workshop Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Computer Software
Production Vehicles
Readymix Vehicles
Transport Vehicles
Site Buildings
Farm Implements
Service Vehicles
Plant under construction

2003
Carrying Value
Land and Buildings
Plant and Equipment
Rehabilitation Assets
Motor Vehicles
Office Furniture
Workshop Equipment
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment
Computer Software
Production Vehicles
Readymix Vehicles
Transport Vehicles
Site Buildings
Farm Implements
Service Vehicles

Start of year
R
3 720 733
2 984 903
3 329 406
2 494 343
60 402
145 213
270 840
423 023
31 997
10 322 376
4 763 141
224 778
804 160
168 006
49 377

Additions
R
6 750 123
118 748
42 368
179 353
204 884
571 938
157 207
2 121 719
2 578 393
145 000
10 460
94 340
88 353
929 660

Disposals Depreciation End of year
R
R
R
(23 460)
3 697 273
(196 307) (1 075 083)
8 463 636
- (1 456 331)
1 873 075
(365)
(681 323)
1 931 403
(11 687)
91 083
(36 517)
288 049
(102 232)
373 492
(4 733)
(166 769)
823 459
(67 851)
121 353
(824 168) (3 049 630)
8 570 297
(6 331) (1 685 456)
5 649 747
(30)
(91 955)
277 793
(6 900)
807 720
(15 194)
79 146
(57 547)
198 812
979 037

29 792 698

13 992 546 (1 055 394) (8 504 475) 34 225 375

Start of year
R
4 901 985
2 964 802
3 329 406
1 582 009
35 167
48 069
74 474
314 378
17 066
10 452 513
6 020 448
196 735
370 003
93 163
60
30 400 278

Additions
Disposals Depreciation End of year
R
R
R
R
- (1 181 248)
3 720 737
942 069
(150 000)
(771 968)
2 984 903
- (1 243 371)
2 095 035
1 751 149
(263 943)
(574 872)
2 494 343
32 819
(20)
(7 564)
60 402
118 852
(21 708)
145 213
239 474
(43 108)
270 840
220 025
(111 380)
423 023
39 268
(24 337)
31 997
3 009 921
(20) (3 140 038) 10 322 376
319 711
(13 393) (1 563 625)
4 763 141
164 959
(40)
(136 876)
224 778
439 803
(5 646)
804 160
(41 271)
(51 892)
206 744
(10)
(38 788)
168 006
49 373
49 373
7 534 167 (1 649 945) (7 726 173) 28 558 327

Start of year
R
4 515 979
1 051 734
3 329 406
1 437 584
22 660
54 654
85 864
282 543
259 904
4 677 608
3 495 183
248 090
263 393
178 695
60
19 903 357

Additions
R
412 746
2 330 191
1 148 237
21 514
12 671
115 518
8 563
7 718 874
3 776 265
60 000
110 967
37 965
15 753 511

Disposals Depreciation End of year
R
R
R
(26 740)
4 901 985
(10)
(417 113)
2 964 802
- (1 012 411)
2 316 995
(574 002)
(429 810)
1 582 009
(9 007)
35 167
(6 585)
48 069
(10)
(24 051)
74 474
(2 566)
(81 117)
314 378
(251 401)
17 066
(101) (1 943 868) 10 452 513
(189 592) (1 061 408)
6 020 448
(20)
(111 335)
196 735
(4 357)
370 003
(123 497)
93 163
60
(793 041) (5 475 960) 29 387 867
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2.3

Details of Land and Buildings:

a

b

c

d

e

f

g

h

Description
Quarry, offices, and workshop situated on Portion 64 of the Farm
Roodepoort No. 744, Registration Division LS, District of Polokwane,
Northern Province, measuring 85,6532 hectares in extent and held under
Deed of Transfer no T19589/1972. Registrar of Pretoria.
Residence situated on Erf 1963, Bethlehem Ext 24, Freestate Province,
measuring 2130 square metres in extent and held under deed of transfer
No T159/1974. Registrar of Bloemfontein.
Office and Workshop buildings situate on remaining extent of Portion
31 of the Farm Middelvlei, No. 225, Randfontein, Gauteng Province,
measuring 38.5822 hectares in extent and held under deed of transfer
number T53027/1984. Registrar of Pretoria.
Office buildings situate on Portion 56 of Erf 247, Potchindustria,
Potchefstroom, North West Province, measuring 9026 square metres in
extent and held under deed of transfer number T64460/1987. Registrar
of Pretoria.
Office Buildings and quarry situate on Portion 1 of the Farm Eureka, No.
1538, Kroonstad, Freestate Province, measuring 57.0448 hectares in
extent and held under deed of transfer number T2347/1987. Registrar
of Bloemfontein.
Office buildings situated on Portion 1 of Erf 31, Vanderbijlpark North
West No 7 Industrial, Gauteng Province, measuring 1.1449 hectares in
extent and held under deed of transfer number T82872/1995. Registrar
of Pretoria.
Quarry, offices, and workshop situated on Erf 4038, Bethlehem, Freestate
Province, measuring 65,8862 hectares in extent and held under deed of
transfer no T8136/1996. Registrar of Bloemfontein.
Office buildings situate on Portions 2, 3, 4 and 5 of Erf 1642, Roodekop,
Gauteng Province, measuring 1785 square meters in extent and held
under deed of transfer number T31098/2002. Registrar of Johannesburg.

Date
Acquired
1971

Accumulated
Cost
R
174 519

1974

68 557

1984

1 401 673

1984

129 117

1988

106 895

1995

379 449

1996

1 024 317

2002

412 746

3 697 273

3

UNLISTED INVESTMENTS
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

Type of
Investment

Market
Value

Market
Value

Market
Value

Momentum Life

Endowment Policy

61 702

-

-

Old Mutual

Endowment Policy

675 221

-

-

Unit Trust

642 128

579 127

425 845

1 379 051

579 127

425 845

2005
R
Balance

2004
R
Balance

Financial Institution

Stanlib

4

LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY DIRECTORS
Name
Makro-Sand (Pty) Limited
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Source

R
R
Advances Repayments

Sale of assets

515 320

3 300 000

514 858

3 299 538

Senatla Structures (Pty) Limited

Trade

-

71 050

108 568

179 618

W G Wearne Logistics (Pty) Limited

Trade

87 326

-

87 326

-

Ukuthula Farms CC

Cash

403 558

-

403 558

-

B J Du Toit

Cash

196 887

-

196 887

-

1 203 091

3 371 050

1 311 197

3 479 156

R
Name

Source

Makro-Sand (Pty) Limited

Advances Repayments

Sale of assets

Senatla Structures (Pty) Limited

R

Trade

2004
R
Balance

3 299 538

-

3 299 538

179 618

-

179 618

3 479 156

-

3 479 156

These loans are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment, other than the loans to B J Du Toit and
Ukuthula Farms CC, which currently bear interest at prime bank overdraft rate.
The loans are unsecured since they are to related parties of the Group.

5

INVENTORIES
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

The amounts attributable to the different categories are as follows:
Fuel
Raw Materials
Finished Goods

6

487 211

798 092

441 434

1 581 066

396 153

560 650

7 231232

2 358 096

368 439

9 299 509

3 552 341

1 370 523

SHARE CAPITAL
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

Authorised -

100 000 Ordinary Shares of R1 each

100 000

100 000

100 000

Issued -

100 000 Ordinary Shares of R1 at start of year

100 000

100 000

100 000

17 375 Ordinary Shares of R1 repurchased

(17 375)

82 625 Ordinary Shares of R1 at end of year

82 625

-

-

100 000

100 000

The Ordinary Shares shall have 1 vote in respect of each share at any meeting of the shareholders of the holding company,
the right to receive a dividend if declared and the right to participate in the capital surplus on winding up of the holding
company.

7

SHAREHOLDERS’ LOANS

The Samant Trust
Mrs S B Wearne
Mrs W Rodgers

2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

1 072

476 072

1 375

-

-

98 150

139 000

34 750

-

S J Wearne

1 778

87 242

315

J C Wearne

173 083

8 938

927

314 933

607 002

100 767

2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

4 682 148

4 335 324

4 014 189

These loans are interest-free, unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

8

ENVIRONMENTAL OBLIGATIONS

The Group is obliged to restore mining sites at the end of their
productive lives to a condition acceptable to the regulatory
authorities. These liabilities are provisions for estimated future
restoration costs, discounted to their present value.
Balance at beginning of year
Amounts added Unwinding of discount
Balance at end of year

374 571

346 824

321 135

5 056 719

4 682 148

4 335 324
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9

INSTALMENT SALE CREDITORS
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

Nedcor Bank Limited

6 099 897

8 665 677

11 742 581

First National Bank Limited - Wesbank

4 570 219

4 401 100

3 606 848

DaimlerChrysler Services (Pty) Limited

2 859 762

3 341 196

3 464 059

Opto Africa (Pty) Limited
Less Current Portion included in Current Liabilities
Non-Current Portion

288 831

-

-

13 818 709

16 407 973

18 813 488

7 084 427

6 806 291

5 013 330

6 734 282

9 601 682

13 800 158

The instalment sale liabilities are secured by agreements over plant and machinery, motor vehicles and computer equipment
with a carrying value of R13 818 709. They currently bear interest at prime less 1% per annum and are repayable in monthly
instalments of R659 816 over periods ranging from 1 to 5 years.

10

DEFERRED TAXATION
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

The Deferred Taxation balance is attributable to the following:
Differential in Accounting and Taxation Amortisation Rates
Deferred Taxation Liability

3 155 091

2 468 963

1 129 759

3 155 091

2 468 963

1 129 759

2 468 963

1 891 445

761 686

Deferred tax reconciliation
Net Deferred Taxation Liability at start of year
Movements during the year due to:
Differential in Accounting and Taxation Amortisation Rates
Net Deferred Taxation Liability at start of year
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686 128

577 518

1 129 759

3 155 091

2 468 963

1 891 445

2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

1 311 197

3 479 156

-

24 248 380

23 073 312

24 143 115

15 186

213 174

296 080

25 574 763

26 765 642

24 439 195

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Credit Risk
Financial assets subject to credit risk consist of:
Loans Receivable
Accounts Receivable
Bank and Cash
Maximum Credit Risk Exposure

The Group’s bank and cash assets are placed with high credit quality financial institutions. Loans and accounts receivable
are assessed for collectability and presented net of an allowance for doubtful recovery. Credit risk with respect to accounts
receivables is spread due to the variety of the Group’s customer base. Accordingly the Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk.
Interest Rate Risk.
Accounts receivable, bank and cash and accounts payable are of short term maturity and non-interest bearing. The interest
rates and terms of repayment attributable to the remaining financial instruments are adequately disclosed in the relevant
notes to the financial statements. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is limited due to the nature of its financial
instruments.
Fair Values.
Financial instruments reflected on the balance sheet include bank and cash balances, investments, loans and accounts
receivable, accounts payable and borrowings. The carrying amounts of these instruments approximated their estimated
fair values.
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12

BANKING FACILITIES
The overdraft facilities of R5 500 000 provided to the Group by Nedcor Bank Limited are repayable on demand, bear interest
at the prime overdraft rate and are secured by:
a
b
c
d
e

Mortgage bonds totalling R2 290 000 registered over various fixed properties.
A cession of trade accounts receivable.
Unlimited suretyship incorporating Cession of Loan funds by all Group Companies.
Unlimited suretyship incorporating Cession of Loan funds by related party, Makro-Sand (Pty) Limited.
Unlimited suretyship incorporating Cession of Loan funds by Mr A J Wearne, a past director of Group companies.

As part of the banking facilities, and secured as above, Nedcor Bank Limited have issued guarantees amounting to R695 246
on behalf of the Group in favour of certain of its trade creditors and the Department of Minerals and Energy, as security for
recurring trade liabilities and to provide for certain rehabilitation requirements at various operating sites of the group.
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INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS

Non-Current

2004
R

2003
R
13 800 158

6 734 282

9 601 682

11 922 597

8 934 955

7 274 021

18 656 879

18 536 637

21 074 179

2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

Transport Revenue

47 059 962

41 534 192

35 359 066

Sales of Crusher Products

22 423 480

26 419 390

21 271 346

105 920 001

78 510 643

72 152 322

Farming Revenue

-

500 680

2 236 287

Rig Hire

-

236 600

360 504

Current

14

2005
R

REVENUE

Revenue excludes value-added tax and comprises the following major classes.

Sales of Ready Mixed Concrete

175 403 443

15

147 201 505 131 379 525

CLASSIFICATION OF TOTAL EXPENDITURE BY NATURE
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

Purchase of Raw Materials

65 174 354

47 202 976

44 318 182

Staff Costs

28 137 675

22 410 838

18 350 542

7 270 104

6 713 762

4 685 509

63 832 300

67 275 686

62 086 409

2 931 265

1 466 063

Depreciation
Other Operating Expenses
Borrowing Costs

1 718 519
166 132 952

146 534 527 130 906 705
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15.1

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Name
Year ended 28 February 2003
S J Wearne
J C Wearne
D D M Wearne
A J Wearne

Year ended 28 February 2004
S J Wearne
J C Wearne
O J G Harvey
D D M Wearne

Year ended 28 February 2005
S J Wearne
J C Wearne
B J Du Toit
O J G Harvey
D D M Wearne
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Basic
R

Incentive
Bonus
R

Motor
vehicle
R

Pension
R

Medical
aid
R

Total
R

275 479
282 863
75 000
543 633
1 176 975

-

104 465
42 946
39 285
186 696

-

-

379 944
325 809
75 000
582 918
1 363 671

480 025
480 025
225 000
180 000
1 365 050

-

66 787
41 490
36 855
145 132

-

18 357
18 411
12 666
28 080
77 514

565 169
539 926
274 521
208 080
1 587 696

540 925
540 925
445 000
445 000
195 000
2 166 850

500 000
500 000
74 000
200 000
250 000
1 524 000

66 787
41 490
63 924
55 282
227 483

65 508
65 508
53 833
53 833
238 682

31 026
31 026
13 310
20 654
31 023
127 039

1 204 246
1 178 949
650 067
774 769
476 023
4 284 054

TAXATION

South African Normal Tax
Current Tax
Deferred Tax - Temporary Differences
Secondary Tax on Companies
Charged against Income
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2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

4 462 254

1 270 330

1 356 944

3 776 126

692 812

227 185

686 128

577 518

1 129 759

723 453

125 000

12 500

5 185 707

1 395 330

1 369 444

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
A contingent liability of R2 486 929 exists for secondary tax on companies based on the Accumulated Profits of the Group.
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RELATED PARTY INFORMATION
The Group has the following Related Party Relationships:
Controlling Entities - Shareholders.
Controlled Entities - Subsidiaries.
Entities where Significant Influence may be exerted - Directors and Affiliated Entities
Transactions with Related Parties:
All transactions with related parties detailed above, including their terms and conditions, are adequately disclosed elsewhere
in the financial statements, except for the transactions detailed below:
Related Party Relationship

2005
R

Services Received from

Entities Controlled by Directors

9 082 936

-

-

Services Rendered to

Entities Controlled by Directors

246 058

-

-

Transaction Type

All transactions were made on commercial terms and conditions.
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2004
R

2003
R
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

423 986

442 147

556 614

19.1 Defined Benefit Plan:
Group Contributions Expensed
Approximately 58 percent of the Group’s employees are members
of this Plan.
At 01 May 2002, the date of the most recent valuation, in the
actuary’s opinion, the fund was in a sound financial position and,
details of the fund are as follows:
Actuarial Present Value of Promised Retirement Benefits

6 446 200

6 446 200

6 446 200

Fair Value of Plan Assets

3 780 200

3 780 200

3 780 200

Outstanding Obligation

2 666 000

2 666 000

2 666 000

Any deficits advised by the actuaries are funded either immediately
or through increased contributions to ensure the ongoing soundness
of the scheme. Contributions are fully expensed during the year
in which they are funded. The next valuation will take place on 1
May 2005.
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NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

20.1 Reconciliation of Dividends Paid during the year:
Appropriation in income statement
Payments made

(3 305 000)

(1 000 000)

(100 000)

(3 305 000)

(1 000 000)

(100 000)

(5 185 707)

(1 395 330)

(1 369 444)

20.2 Reconciliation of Taxation Paid during the year:
Charge in income statement
Adjustment for deferred tax

686 128

577 518

Movement in taxation balance

3 805 640

623 427

Payments made

(693 939)

(194 385)

1 129 759
(790 581)
(1 030 266)

20.3 Reconciliation of Bank and Cash Balances:
Bank and cash balances included in the cash flow statement
comprise the following balance sheet amounts:Bank and Cash
Bank Overdraft

15 186

213 174

296 080

(4 838 170)

(2 128 664)

(2 260 691)

(4 822 984)

(1 915 490)

(1 964 611)
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EFFECTS OF THE ADJUSTMENT FOR DECOMMISSIONING AND QUARRY REHABILITATION
2005
R

2004
R

2003
R

On the Income Statements Profit after Tax as originally reported

10 794 786

3 353 081

4 138 323

Net Decrease in after Tax Profit
Depreciation

(221 960)

(221 960)

(221 960)

Deferred Tax thereon

66 588

66 588

66 588

Cost of Sales

45 647

131 639

128 156

Finance Costs (unwinding of discount on Environmental Obligation)
Profit after Tax after adjustments, as presented above

(374 571)
10 310 490

(346 824)

(321 135)

2 982 524

3 789 972

(221 960)

2 316 995

153 285

493 501

(158 959)

(68 678)

2 810 496

(467 270)

(348 914)

(2 219 926)

Deferred Taxation

(66 588)

(66 588)

695 098

Environmental Obligations

374 571

346 824

4 335 324

328

-

-

(68 678)

2 810 496

On the Balance Sheets –
Carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment
Unlisted Investments
Increase (Decrease) in Assets
Equity

Bank and Cash
Increase (Decrease) in Equity and Liabilities
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(221 960)
63 001

(158 959)

Annexure 3

Independent Reporting Accountants’ report on the Historical Financial
Information of Wearne
“The Directors
WG Wearne Limited
PO Box 1422
Randfontein
1760
3 February 2006
Dear Sirs
INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON THE AUDITED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF WEARNE
INTRODUCTION
The definitions commencing on page 8 of this prospectus have been used in this report.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
At your request, we present our report on the historical financial information of Wearne, for the purposes of complying with the
Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited and for inclusion in this prospectus dated 10 February 2006.
RESPONSIBILITY
The directors of Wearne are responsible for the compilation, contents and preparation of this prospectus and for the accuracy of
the information contained therein. The directors of Wearne are responsible for the financial information to which this report on
historical financial information of Wearne relate, and from which such reports have been prepared.
Our responsibility is to express an audit opinion on the report on historical financial information of Wearne.
HISTORICAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE YEARS ENDED 28 FEBRUARY 2005, 29 FEBRUARY 2004 AND
28 FEBRUARY 2003.
We have audited the historical financial information of Wearne relating to the years ended 28 February 2005, 29 February 2004 and
28 February 2003 as set in Annexure 2 to this prospectus dated 10 February 2006.
SCOPE OF THE AUDIT
We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those statements require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the historical financial information relating to the years ended 28
February 2005, 29 February 2004 and 28 February 2003 is free of material misstatement.
Our audit included examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the abovementioned historical
financial information. The evidence included that previously obtained by us relating to the audit of the annual financial statements
underlying the historical financial information. Our audit also included assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall historical financial information presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
AUDIT OPINION
In our opinion, the historical financial information of Wearne relating to the years ended 28 February 2005, 29 February 2004 and
28 February 2003, for the purposes of the prospectus, fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial position of Wearne
for the years ended 28 February 2005, 29 February 2004 and 28 February 2003 and the results of its operations and cash flows for
the years then ended in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice and in the manner
required by the Companies Act in South Africa and the JSE Listings Requirements.
CONSENT
We hereby consent to the inclusion of this report which forms part of the prospectus to be dated 10 February 2006 in the form and
context in which it appears.
Yours faithfully
Clarke and Patterson
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)
PO Box 2092
Johannesburg
2000
South Africa
Per: B M Pringle
Partner”
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Annexure 4

Reviewed interim financial information of Wearne
The balance sheet, income statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement are provided below.
The independent reporting accountants report on the reviewed financial information of the group for the interim six month periods
ended 31 August 2004 and 31 August 2005, issued by Clarke and Patterson, is set out in Annexure 5 to this document.

BALANCE SHEETS
REVIEWED
AUDITED
AUGUST 2005 FEBRUARY 2005
R
R
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment

52 733 952

35 604 426

48 855 571

34 225 375

Goodwill

2 418 636

-

Unlisted Investments

1 459 696

1 379 051
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-

50 409 477

34 874 272

Investment in Associates
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

10 666 749

9 299 509

Accounts Receivable

35 542 965

24 248 380

Loans to Directors and Entities Controlled by Directors

1 995 588

1 311 197

Bank and Cash

2 204 175

15 186

TOTAL ASSETS

103 143 429

70 478 698

26 359 875

19 361 220

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Issued Capital

82 625

82 625

26 277 250

19 278 595

31 295 789

15 261 025

Shareholders’ Loans

2 101 283

314 933

Environmental Obligations

5 258 988

5 056 719

Instalment Sale Creditors

19 485 142

6 734 282

4 450 376

3 155 091

45 487 765

35 856 453

30 669 591

19 365 200

8 008 533

7 084 427

Retained Earnings
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred Taxation
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Current Portion of Non-current Liabilities
Short Term Loans

401 800

437 176

Taxation

5 241 701

4 131 152

Bank Overdraft

1 166 140

4 838 498

103 143 429

70 478 698

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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INCOME STATEMENTS

REVENUE

REVIEWED
AUGUST
2005
R

REVIEWED
AUGUST
2004
R

96 936 726

94 508 479

COST OF INVENTORIES EXPENSED

65 620 372

71 362 078

GROSS PROFIT

31 316 354

23 146 401

OTHER INCOME

1 431 683

1 932 513

GROSS INCOME

32 748 037

25 078 914

OPERATING EXPENSES

18 469 568

13 123 632

EBITDA

14 278 469

11 955 282

3 145 978

3 004 671

11 132 491

8 950 611

DEPRECIATION
PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST AND TAXATION
NET INTEREST PAID

1 281 751

349 534

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

9 850 740

8 601 077

TAXATION

2 883 557

2 890 085

EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY SHAREHOLDERS

6 967 183

5 710 992

484 342

969 746

Auditors’ Remuneration -

162 272

84 000

Audit Fees

162 272

84 000

1 370 083

1 221 632

1 370 083

1 221 632

82 625

100 000

8 432

5 711

Profit before tax above is disclosed
after crediting:
Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
and after charging:-

Directors’ Emoluments For Managerial Services
Weighted average no of shares in issue
Basic earnings per share (cents)
Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (after Tax) (cents)

(410)

Headline earnings per share (cents)
Dividend per share (cents)

(679)

8 022

5 032

-

-

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance at 29 February 2004
Net Profit for the period
Balance at 31 August 2004
Shares repurchased

Share Capital

Retained
Earnings

R

R

R

100 000

14 738 704

14 838 704

Total

-

5 710 992

5 710 992

100 000

20 449 696

20 549 696

(17 375)

-

(17 375)

Premium on share capital repurchased

-

(2 482 625)

(2 482 625)

Net Profit for the period

-

4 599 498

4 599 498

Fair Value Adjustment to Investment

-

Dividend Paid

-

Balance at 28 February 2005

17 026
(3 305 000)

17 026
(3 305 000)

82 625

19 278 595

19 361 220

Net Profit for the period

-

6 967 182

6 967 182

Fair Value Adjustment to Investment

-

26 465

26 465

Deferred Tax thereon

-

5 008

5 008

82 625

26 277 250

26 359 875

Balance at 31 August 2005
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CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
REVIEWED
AUGUST
2005
R

REVIEWED
AUGUST
2004
R

10 879 487

9 634 132

Profit Before Taxation

9 850 739

8 601 077

Net Interest Paid

1 281 751

349 534

Depreciation

3 145 978

3 004 671

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment

(969 746)

13 794 126

10 985 536

Changes in Working Capital Items

(1 357 433)

(1 413 692)

(1 367 240)

(1 554 564)

(11 294 585)

(13 869 405)

11 304 392

14 010 277

Cash Generated from Operations

12 436 693

9 571 844

Less -

(1 557 206)

Inventories
Accounts Receivable
Accounts Payable

Interest Received
Interest Paid
Dividends Paid
Taxation Paid
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment
Purchase of Goodwill
Proceeds on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
nvestment in Associate
Unlisted Investments
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

248 173
(1 327 656)
(477 723)

62 288
96 295
(258 543)
224 536

(19 759 689)

(3 257 698)

(17 431 832)

(4 644 161)

(2 418 636)
140 000
(49)
(49 172)
14 741 549

1 415 541
(29 077)
(2 385 328)

Share Capital

-

-

Premium on Shares Repurchased

-

-

Non-current Loans

14 741 549

(2 385 328)

5 861 348

3 991 106

BANK AND CASH BALANCES at start of period

(4 823 312)

(1 915 490)

BANK AND CASH BALANCES at end of period

1 038 036

2 075 616

NET CASH INFLOWS (OUTFLOWS)
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(484 342)

Operating Profit before Changes in Working Capital

NOTES TO THE INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION
1

ACCOUNTING BASIS
The interim financial statements for the six months ended 31 August 2005 have been prepared in terms of International
Financial Reporting Standards, while the interim financial statements for the period ended 31 August 2004 were prepared in
terms of South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Standards. In all other respects the accounting policies
applied are consistent with the prior years. They have also been prepared in terms of international accounting standard
IAS 34 for interim financial reporting. An effective tax rate of 30% has been used in the interim period to provide for minor
amounts of expenditure that may not be deductible for tax purposes.

2

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
The useful lives and estimated residual values of certain categories of property, plant and equipment were re-assessed on
application of the new international accounting standards, and the change has been applied prospectively to the interim
information presented, as permitted by IAS 16.
The following were re-assessed –
Asset Class
Plant and Equipment

Previously
(years)

Re-assessed To
(years)

5

10

Production Vehicles

5

10

Readymix Vehicles

5

5 to 10

The effects of these changes are as follows REVIEWED
AUGUST 2005
R
Decrease in Depreciation
Taxation thereon
Net Increase in Profit after Tax

3

2 171 274
651 382
1 519 892

CHANGE IN COMPOSITION OF THE GROUP
During the period the group acquired the entire issued capital of W G Wearne Logistics (Pty) Limited from S J Wearne and
J C Wearne, directors of W G Wearne (Pty) Limited, and The Samant Trust, a shareholder in W G Wearne (Pty) Limited, for
the amount of R3 million, with effect from 1 March 2005. Net assets amounting to R581 364 were acquired, resulting in a
goodwill of R2 418 636 on acquisition. This company carries out transport services for the holding company. This acquisition
increased the net income after tax of the Group for the period by R1.1 million for the interim period. During the period
the Group also acquired 49 shares (49% of the issued capital) of Senatla Structures (Pty) Limited from S J Wearne and J C
Wearne, directors of W G Wearne (Pty) Limited, at their nominal value of R49. This company is dormant.

4

SEASONALITY
The operations of the group are seasonal in nature, in that the general closure of business, particularly in the construction
industry, over the Christmas period has an adverse effect on operations. This would not affect the results for the interim
period, but the pre-tax profit for the second six-month period is expected to be lower than in the first six months.
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5

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
There were no material related party transactions during the period, other than the purchase of shares as described above,
and the remuneration of the directors, which is described below.
5.1

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Six Months ended 31 August 2004
S J Wearne
J C Wearne
B J Du Toit
O J G Harvey
D D M Wearne

Six Months ended 31 August 2005
S J Wearne
J C Wearne
B J Du Toit
O J G Harvey
D D M Wearne

6

Basic
R

Incentive
Bonus
R

249 462
249 462
205 000
205 000
90 000
998 924

-

282 000
282 000
227 500
227 500
115 000
1 134 000

-

Motor
vehicle
R
33
20
31
27

394
745
962
641
113 742

33
25
31
27

394
902
962
641
118 899

Medical
aid
R

Total
R

12
12
10
10

15 513
15 513
6 655
10 327
15 512
63 520

310 842
298 193
253 867
253 218
105 512
1 221 632

14
14
11
11

16 314
16 314
6 810
10 482
16 314
66 234

345 808
338 316
277 647
276 998
131 314
1 370 083

Pension
R
473
473
250
250
45 446

100
100
375
375
50 950

CONTINGENT LIABILITY
During the period a machine of a supplier was damaged while it was being transported on their behalf. A claim has been
lodged against the holding company for this damage in the amount of R500 000 and negotiations are under way to refute
or settle the claim.

7

BORROWINGS
The level of borrowings authorised by the company’s articles are unlimited.

8

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
REVIEWED
AUGUST 2005
R
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases for transport vehicles are as follows:
Due in one year

3 072 332

Due in two to five years

9 005 274
12 077 606
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Annexure 5

Independent reporting accountants’ report on reviewed interim
financial information of Wearne
“The Directors
WG Wearne Limited
PO Box 1422
Randfontein
1760
3 February 2006
Dear Sirs
INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’ REPORT ON THE REVIEWED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF WEARNE
INTRODUCTION
The definitions commencing on page 8 of this prospectus have been used in this report.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
At your request, we present our report on the interim financial information of Wearne, for the purposes of complying with the
Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited and for inclusion in this prospectus dated 10 February 2006.
RESPONSIBILITY
The directors of Wearne are responsible for the compilation, contents and preparation of this prospectus, and for the accuracy of
the information contained therein. The directors of Wearne are responsible for the financial information to which this reporting
accountants’ report relate, and from which such report has been prepared.
Our responsibility is to express a review opinion on the report on interim financial information of Wearne.
REVIEW REPORT OF INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 AUGUST 2004 AND 2005
We have reviewed the interim financial information of Wearne relating to the periods ended 31 August 2004 and 31 August 2005 as
set out in the report of interim financial information attached as Annexure 4 to this prospectus dated 10 February 2006.
We conducted our review in accordance with the International Standards on Review Engagements. This standard requires that we
plan and perform the review to obtain moderate assurance that the interim financial information relating to the periods ended 31
August 2004 and 31 August 2005 is free of material misstatement. A review is limited primarily to enquiries of company personnel
and analytical procedures applied to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed an audit
and we do not express an audit opinion.
REVIEW OPINION
Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the interim financial information of Wearne
for the periods ended 31 August 2004 and 31 August 2005 for purposes of this prospectus dated 10 February 2006 is not fairly
presented, in all material respects, in accordance with the South African Statements of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
for the period ended 31 August 2004 and International Financial Reporting Standards for the period ended 31 August 2005, and in
the manner required by the Companies Act in South Africa and the JSE Listings Requirements.
Other than as a result of the private placing, as outlined in this document, there have been no material changes in the financial or
trading position of Wearne and any of its subsidiaries since 31 August 2005, the date of the latest interim results of Wearne.
CONSENT
We hereby consent to the inclusion of this report which forms part of the prospectus to be dated 10 February 2006 in the form and
context in which it appears.
Yours faithfully
Clarke and Patterson
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)
PO Box 2092
Johannesburg
2000
South Africa
Per: B M Pringle
Partner”
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Annexure 6

Independent Reporting Accountants’ Report on the Profit Forecast of
Wearne
“The Directors
W G Wearne Limited
PO Box 1422
Randfontein
1760
3 February 2006
Dear Sirs
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ON THE FORECAST INCOME STATEMENTS (“forecast financial
information”) OF WEARNE
INTRODUCTION
The definitions commencing on page 8 of this prospectus have been used in this report.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
At your request we present our report on the forecast financial information of Wearne for the years ending on 28 February 2006 and
28 February 2007, for the purposes of complying with the Listings Requirements of the JSE and for inclusion in the prospectus.
SCOPE OF THE ENGAGEMENT
We have examined the forecast financial information of Wearne for the financial years ending 28 February 2006 and 28 February
2007 as set out in paragraph 12.2 of the prospectus.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The directors are responsible for the forecast, including the assumptions set out in paragraphs 12.2.2 of the prospectus, and for the
financial information from which it has been prepared. This responsibility, arising from compliance with the Listing Requirements
of the JSE, includes;
−
−
−

determining whether the assumptions, barring unforeseen circumstances, provide a reasonable basis for the preparation of the
forecast;
whether the forecast has been properly compiled on the basis stated; and
whether the forecast is presented on a basis consistent with the accounting policies of Wearne;

REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to provide a limited assurance report on the forecast prepared for the purpose of complying with the Listing
Requirements of the JSE and for inclusion in the prospectus. We conducted our assurance engagement in accordance with the
International Standard on Assurance Engagements applicable to the Examination of Prospective Financial Information. This standard
requires us to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence as to whether or not:
− managements’ best-estimate assumptions on which the forecast is based are not unreasonable and are consistent with the
purpose of the information;
− the forecast is properly prepared on the basis of the assumptions;
− the forecast is properly presented and all material assumptions are adequately disclosed; and
− the forecast is properly prepared and presented on a basis consistent with the accounting policies of Wearne for the period
concerned.
In a limited assurance engagement, the evidence-gathering procedures are more limited than for a reasonable assurance
engagement and, therefore, less assurance is obtained than in a reasonable assurance engagement. We believe our evidence
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our limited assurance conclusion.
CONCLUSION
Based on our examination of evidence obtained, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that:
− the assumptions, barring unforeseen circumstances, do not provide a reasonable basis for the preparation of the forecast
financial information;
− the forecast financial information has not been properly compiled on the basis stated;
− the forecast has not been properly presented and all material assumptions are not adequately disclosed; and
− the forecast financial information is not presented on a basis consistent with the accounting policies of Wearne.
Actual results are likely to be different from then forecast, since anticipated events frequently do not occur as expected and the
variation may be material; accordingly no assurance is expressed regarding the achievability of the forecast.
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CONSENT
We hereby consent to the inclusion of this report on the forecast financial information of Wearne which forms part of the prospectus,
in the form and context in which it appears.
Yours faithfully
Clarke and Patterson
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)
PO Box 2092
Johannesburg
2000
South Africa
Per: B M Pringle
Partner”
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Annexure 7

Independent Reporting Accountants’ Report on the Unaudited
Pro forma Income Statement and Balance Sheet
“The Directors
W G Wearne Limited
PO Box 1422
Randfontein
1760
3 February 2006
Dear Sirs
REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS ON THE UNAUDITED Pro forma INCOME STATEMENT AND BALANCE
SHEET OF WEARNE
INTRODUCTION
The definitions commencing on page 8 of this prospectus have been used in this report.
Wearne is currently in the process of raising R25 000 000 by way of a private placement of 25 000 000 ordinary shares of Wearne
at an issue price of 100 cents per share. Subject to the achievement of the required spread of shareholders, Wearne will apply for
listing on the Alternative Exchange of the JSE Limited.
PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT
At your request we present our report on the pro forma financial information of Wearne for the years ending on 28 February 2006,
for the purposes of complying with the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited and for inclusion in the prospectus. The unaudited
pro forma income statement was prepared on the basis that the private placement of 25 000 000 shares at 100 cents each was
concluded on 1 March 2005. The unaudited pro forma balance sheet was prepared on the basis that the private placement was
concluded on 31 August 2005.
SCOPE
We have performed our limited assurance engagement in respect of the pro-forma financial information set out in paragraph 12.3
of the prospectus. The pro forma financial information has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the JSE Listings
Requirements, for illustrative purposes only, to provide information about how the private placement might have affected the
reported reviewed financial information presented, had the placement been undertaken at the commencement of the period or at
the date of the pro forma balance sheet being reported on.
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The directors are responsible for the compilation, contents and presentation of the pro forma financial information contained in
the prospectus and for the financial information from which it has been prepared. Their responsibility includes determining that:
− the pro forma financial information has been properly compiled on the basis stated;
− the basis is consistent with the accounting policies of Wearne; and
− the pro forma adjustments are appropriate for the purposes of the pro forma financial information disclosed in terms of the JSE
Listings Requirements.
REPORTING ACCOUNTANTS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express our limited assurance conclusion on the pro forma financial information included in the prospectus.
We conducted our assurance engagement in accordance with the International Standard on Assurance Engagements applicable to
the Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and the Guide on pro forma Financial
Information issued by SAICA.
This standard requires us to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence on which to base our conclusion.
We do not accept any responsibility for any reports previously given by us on any financial information used in the compilation
of the pro forma financial information beyond that owed to those whom those reports were addressed by us at the dates of their
issue.
SOURCES OF INFORMATION AND WORK PERFORMED
Our procedures consisted primarily of comparing the unadjusted financial information with the source documents, considering
the pro forma adjustments in the light of the accounting policies of Wearne, considering the evidence supporting the pro forma
adjustments and discussing the adjusted pro forma financial information with the directors of Wearne in respect of the private
placement that is the subject of the prospectus.
In arriving at our conclusion, we have relied upon financial information prepared by the directors of Wearne and other information
from various public, financial and industry sources.
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While our work performed has involved an analysis of the reviewed financial information and other financial information provided
to us, our assurance engagement does not constitute an audit or review of any of the underlying financial information conducted
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing or International Standards on Review Engagements and accordingly, we do
not express an audit or review opinion.
In a limited assurance engagement, the evidence-gathering procedures are more limited than for a reasonable assurance
engagement and, therefore, less assurance is obtained than in a reasonable assurance engagement. We believe our evidence
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our conclusion.
CONCLUSION
Based on our examination of evidence obtained, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that:
− the pro forma financial information has not been properly compiled on the basis stated,
− such basis is consistent with the accounting policies of the issuer, and
− the adjustments are not appropriate for the purposes of the pro forma financial information as disclosed in terms of the section
8.17 and 8.30 JSE Listings Requirements.
CONSENT
We hereby consent to the inclusion of this report on the pro forma financial information of Wearne which forms part of the
prospectus, in the form and context in which it appears.
Yours faithfully
Clarke and Patterson
Registered Accountants and Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)
PO Box 2092
Johannesburg
2000
South Africa
Per: B M Pringle
Partner”
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Annexure 8

Corporate Governance
The board of directors of Wearne sets the group’s overall policy and provides guidance and input in areas relating to strategic
direction, planning, acquisitions, performance measurement, resource allocation, key appointments, standards of conduct and
communication with shareholders.
The company’s corporate philosophy is consistent with the principles of the King Report II on Corporate Governance 2002. It has,
until recently, been a private company so there are few formal structures in place and compliance with the King code is presently
largely informal. The structures necessary to comply with a listing on the ALTx Exchange will be put in place as soon as possible.
Chairman
At present the Chairman is an executive Director, and the role of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are not separated.
These are not ALTx requirements.
The Board will, as a minimum, ensure compliance with the following:
Code of Conduct
The directors acknowledge the importance of sound corporate governance and the guidelines set out in the Principles of Good
Corporate Governance and Code of Best Practice (“Combined Code”). The directors therefore intend to embrace the Combined
Code so far as is appropriate having regard to the size and nature of the various companies making up the group. The board will
take such measures so far as is practicable to comply with the Combined Code.
Board of directors
The company has four executive directors and two non-executive directors at this stage. The non-executive directors are all fully
independent of management and free to make their own decisions and independent judgements. They enjoy no benefits from the
company for their services as directors other than their fees and potential capital gains and dividends on their interests in ordinary
shares and options.
The non-executive directors are high calibre individuals and sufficient in number for their independent views to carry significant
weight in the board’s deliberations and decisions.
The board retains full and effective control over the company. Apart from regular meetings, additional meetings are arranged
when necessary to review strategy, planning, operations, financial performance, risk and capital expenditure, human resource and
environmental management. The board is also responsible for monitoring the activities of the executive management.
Service contracts of directors are currently for an indefinite period, but in future will not exceed three years in duration.
At this stage, the company does not have a formal Nomination or Risk Committee. Future appointments to the board will, however,
be formal and a transparent matter for the board as a whole. Other committees will be chaired by non-executive directors.
The Executive Committee
The Executive Committee comprises the four executive directors, together with the managers of the different business units.
The Executive Committee, which is responsible for the daily running of the group, regularly reviews current operations in detail,
develops strategy and policy proposals for consideration by the board and then implements its directives.
The Executive Chairman liaises on a regular basis with the Financial Director and the other Directors, with regard to matters raised
and to be raised at meetings.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee will be chaired by a non-executive director, and the company’s Designated Adviser will be a member thereof.
It will be attended by the Financial Director, and will be formed for the purposes of monitoring and reviewing:
-

the effectiveness of the group’s information systems and other systems of internal control;
the effectiveness of the internal audit function;
the reports of both the external and internal auditors;
the annual report and specifically the annual financial statements included therein;
the accounting policies of the group and any proposed revisions thereto;
the external audit findings, reports and fees and the approval thereof;
compliance with applicable legislation and requirements of regulatory authorities.

The external auditors will have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee and its chairman with a view to ensuring that their
independence is not impaired.
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Remuneration Committee
The company will not have a remuneration committee, as this is not an ALTx requirement.
Annual General Meetings
Attendance by shareholders will be encouraged at annual general meetings.
Code of ethics
The company adheres to a code of ethics. The company observes a closed period from the end of the reporting period until the
announcement of interim and year-end results, during which period neither directors nor employees may deal directly or indirectly,
in the ordinary shares of the company.
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Annexure 9

Salient Features of the Company’s Share Scheme
The salient features of the employee share trust, which was adopted on 20 January 2006, established as an incentive to promote
the continued growth of the company by giving employees an opportunity to acquire shares therein, are set out below.

1.

2.

Definitions
“Acceptance Date”

the date of acceptance by a Participant of an offer for the purchase of Scheme Shares in terms of
clause 6 or to acquire Rights and Options to purchase Allocation Shares in terms of clause 23;

“Eligible Applicant”

a person eligible for participation in this Scheme, namely, any Employee of the Group who has
not less than 12 (twelve) months uninterrupted service with the Group or as may be otherwise
determined from time to time by the Board as well as a non-executive director of the Company;

“Employee”

an employee of the Group and shall include an executive director of the Group and to whom an
offer shall have been directed to acquire shares in the Company;

“Purchase Price”

in relation to Scheme Shares and/or Allocation Shares, an amount equivalent to the middle
market price of the Shares on the JSE on the trading day immediately preceding that on which a
resolution of the Board is passed for the purposes of allotting Scheme Shares or granting Rights
and Options to purchase Allocation Shares, but subject to the requirements of the JSE;

“Scheme Shares”

Shares purchased by a Participant under this Scheme for as long as the Participant has not made
payment in full of his Share Scheme Debt relating to those Shares, which Shares shall rank pari
passu in every respect with the existing ordinary issued shares of the Company;

“Shares”

ordinary shares in the capital of the Company;

Purpose and nature
This Scheme is introduced for the purpose of providing an opportunity to the employees of W G Wearne Limited (“the
company”) and subsidiaries of the company to acquire shares in the capital of the company, either directly or through
the grant of options, so as to give such employees the incentive to advance the interests of the company for the ultimate
benefit of all stakeholders in the company.

3.

Eligible Applicants
The Directors shall from time to time instruct the Trustees to offer the opportunity to acquire Rights and Options to
purchase Allocation Shares or to acquire Scheme Shares to Eligible Applicants in respect of such number of Shares, which in
aggregate, together with any Scheme Shares already in issue and/or the number of Allocation Shares at that time shall not
exceed 20% (twenty percent) of the ordinary issued share capital of the Company at the date of the offer or such increased
percentage as may from time to time be approved by the JSE and by the Company in general meeting. The maximum
number of shares which may presently be issued in terms of the Scheme is therefore 20 000 000 (twenty million) Shares.
The maximum number of Shares in respect of which any single Eligible Participant shall have rights in terms of the Scheme
shall be limited to 1% (one percent) of the ordinary issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The Directors
shall forward to the Trustees a certified copy of the resolution authorising an offer of Scheme Shares and/or Allocation
Shares to specific Eligible Applicants and the Trustees shall offer the number of Scheme Shares and/or Allocation Shares
referred to in such resolution to the Eligible Applicant named in such resolution.

4.

Pricing
The Trustees shall, on the authority of a resolution of the Board and subject to the provisions of clause 6.2, offer Eligible
Applicants the right to purchase Scheme Shares at the Purchase Price, which Purchase Price may be higher or lower than
the price at which the Scheme Shares in question were acquired by the Trust.

5.

Release Period
All amounts paid by a Participant shall be applied rateably toward payment of the Purchase Price of all of the Scheme Shares
which such Participant has purchased unless the Participant allocates, in writing at the time that he makes such payment,
the payment to specific Scheme Shares. The balance of the Share Scheme Debt of a Participant may be paid by him to the
Trust at any time; provided that the Share Scheme Debt shall be paid in full by no later than the 4th (fourth) anniversary
of the Acceptance Date; provided that further that the Board may, in its discretion, increase the period for repayment
stipulated in this clause, either generally or in any particular case.
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When the Share Scheme Debt in respect thereof will have been paid in full, a Participant shall, subject to 3.16, be entitled
to the release of his Scheme Shares from the operation of this Scheme after the expiry of a period of:
5.1

1 (one) year after the Acceptance Date, in respect of 20% (twenty percent) of the Scheme Shares, or part thereof;

5.2

2 (two) years after the Acceptance Date, in respect of a further 25% (twenty five percent) of the Scheme Shares, or
part thereof;

5.3

3 (three) years after the Acceptance Date in respect of a further 25% (twenty five percent) of the Scheme Shares, or
part thereof;

5.4

4 (four) years after the Acceptance Date in respect of a further 30% (thirty percent) of the Scheme Shares, or the
balance of the Scheme Shares.

A Participant’s Share Scheme Debt shall bear interest on the balance thereof outstanding from time to time. Such interest
shall be at a rate which is not less than the rate of interest stipulated from time to time in terms of the Seventh Schedule
of the Income Tax Act, 1962, as amended. The Board may in its discretion alter the rate of interest from time to time;
provided that no alteration in the rate shall have retrospective effect.
If the full amount of the Share Scheme Debt is not paid on the due date for payment thereof in terms of the Scheme, the
Trustees shall call upon the Participant in writing to effect such payment and if such demand if not complied with within
21 (twenty one) days of the date thereof, the Trustees may cancel the sale and take possession of such Scheme Shares, in
which event the Participant shall be released from all further liability in respect of his Share Scheme Debt or the Trustees
may, in their sole and absolute discretion, permit the Participant to sell so many of the Scheme Shares as may be necessary
to enable the Participant to discharge his Share Scheme Debt so as to procure the release of the remainder of the Scheme
Shares to which he is entitled.

6.

Death, Retirement or Disability or Resignation
6.1.

Death
If a Participant dies before the arrival of the 4th (fourth) anniversary of the Acceptance Date, then at any time
before the finalisation of his estate or within 2 (two) years after his death, whichever is the earlier, the Participant’s
executor shall have the right and obligation at his election to pay the Share Scheme Debt in full and have the Scheme
Shares released or to have such Scheme Shares repurchased by the Trustees at the Repurchase Price of the Scheme
Shares, in which latter mentioned event the estate of the Participant shall be released from all liability in respect
of the Share Scheme Debt.

6.2.

Retirement or disability
Any Participant who becomes retired in terms of the rules of the Company’s pension fund or with the approval
of the Board or who becomes permanently incapacitated shall within 2 (two) years after his becoming retired or
permanently incapacitated, have the right and obligation to elect to pay his Share Scheme Debt in full in respect of
all of his Scheme Shares and have them released to him or to have his Scheme Shares repurchased by the Trustees
at the Repurchase Price of the Scheme Shares, in which latter mentioned event such retired or incapacitated
Participant shall be released from all liability in respect of his Share Scheme Debt.

6.3.

Dismissal
If the employment of a Participant with the Group is terminated by the Group as a result of dishonesty or upon
such other grounds as will justify a summary dismissal in law, the Trustees shall forthwith thereafter purchase from
the Participant who shall sell to the Trust the Scheme Shares which have then not been released to him at a price
equal to the closing price of the Shares on the JSE on the trading day immediately preceding the date of purchase.
The Trustees shall apply the proceeds of the sale to repay the Participant’s Share Scheme Debt. Any excess of the
proceeds over the Share Scheme Debt shall be forfeited to the Trust and the Participant shall be released from any
further liability in respect of his Share Scheme Debt.

6.4.

Cessation of employment for other reasons
If a Participant for any reason other than his dismissal, death, retirement or permanent incapacity, does not remain
employed by the Group for a period of 4 (four) years from the Acceptance Date; or
The Participant remains an Employee of the Group but desires, at any time prior to the expiry of 4 (four) years from
the Acceptance Date, to terminate his participation in the Scheme,
then upon the date upon which he ceases to be employed by the Group or upon the date that he notifies the Trustees
in writing that he no longer wishes to participate as a member of the Scheme, whichever is apposite, the Trustees
in their sole and absolute discretion may repurchase the Scheme Shares from the Participant at the Repurchase
Price. The Participant shall in the above events have no further rights or claims against the Trust arising from the
acquisition of his Scheme Shares.
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7.

Amendments
It shall be competent for the Board and the Trustees to amend any of the provisions of the Scheme provided that:

8.

7.1.

no such amendment shall affect the vested rights of any Participant; and

7.2.

no such amendment affecting any of the following matters shall be competent unless it is sanctioned by the Company
in general meeting:
7.2.1.

the eligibility of Participants under this Scheme;

7.2.2.

the proportion, expressed as a percentage, which the Shares that may be acquired by the Trustees for
purposes of the Scheme, bears to the entire issued ordinary share capital of the Company for the time
being;

7.2.3.

the maximum number of Scheme Shares that may be acquired by any Participant;

7.2.4.

the Purchase Price;

7.2.5.

the voting, dividend, transfer and other rights, including those arising on a liquidation of the Company,
attaching to the Scheme Shares;

7.2.6.

any amendment of this clause.

Trustees
There shall at all times be a minimum of two Trustees in office. Ockert Jacobus Le Roux Identity Number 7505075187089
and Esna Colyn Identity Number 6704200155084 (not being salaried directors or Employees of the Group) are appointed as
Trustees of the Trust and accept that appointment by their signatures hereto;
No Trustee shall be eligible for participation under the Scheme.

9.

Annual Disclosure
The Company shall in its annual financial statements, provide particulars of:
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9.1.

the number of Scheme Shares which have been taken up by Participants in terms of offers made to them and which
Scheme Shares are subject to the Scheme;

9.2.

any changes in the number of Scheme Shares which have been taken up by Participants during the year;

9.3.

the number of Scheme Shares initially taken up by Participants as Scheme Shares and which during the year have
ceased to be Scheme Shares;

9.4.

the Purchase Price at which Employees were offered Scheme Shares during the year and the total number of Scheme
Shares taken up by Eligible Applicants at such Purchase Price;

9.5.

the total number of Scheme Shares still available to be taken up by Eligible Applicants in terms of the Scheme;
andthe aggregate amount owing by Participants to the Trust at the end of each year

W G Wearne Limited
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)
(Registration number: 1994/005983/06)
(JSE code: WEA ISIN: ZAE000078002)
(“Wearne” or “the company”)

PRIVATE PLACEMENT APPLICATION FORM
In respect of the private placement by way of subscription of 25 000 000 Wearne ordinary shares at an issue price of 100
cents per share registered in terms of the prospectus issued on 10 February 2006 (“the prospectus”)
Please refer to the instructions overleaf before completing this private placement application form.

Certificated shares – Payment by bank guaranteed cheque or banker’s draft.

Applicants who elect to receive their allocated shares in certificated form and who wish to pay by way of bank guaranteed cheque or banker’s draft must complete
and return the private placement application, together with their payment in the form of a bank guaranteed cheque or banker’s draft (crossed “not transferable” and
drawn in favour of “WG Wearne Limited”) in an envelope marked “Wearne Private Placement” to:
if delivered by hand or by courier
Designated Adviser
Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
39 First Road
Hyde Park
Johannesburg
2196

if posted
Designated Adviser
Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
PO Box 411216
Craighall
2024

Certificated shares – payment by electronic transfer

Applicants who elect to receive their allocated shares in certificated form and who wish to pay by way of electronic transfer may do so, in which case the private
placement application, and proof of such payment by electronic transfer must be hand delivered, posted or faxed to Wearne (and not the transfer secretaries) to:
if delivered by hand or by courier
Designated Adviser
Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
39 First Road
Hyde Park
Johannesburg
2196
so as to be received by no later than 12:00 on Wednesday, 15

if posted
Designated Adviser
Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
PO Box 411216
Craighall
2024

if faxed
Designated Adviser
Fax (011) 447 1929

February 2006.

Payment by electronic transfer must be made into the following bank account:
Bank:
Branch:
Branch code:
Account name:
Account number:

Nedbank Limited
Business Northrand
146905
WG Wearne Limited
1469154668

Wearne accepts no responsibility and will not be liable for the correctness of any allocation of private placement shares pursuant to payment being made or alleged to
have been made by way of electronic transfer due to proof of such payment not being received or purported proof of such payment being insufficient or defective or
Wearne, for any reason, not being able to reconcile a payment or purported payment with a particular application for private placement shares.

Dematerialised shares – payment by electronic transfer or through CSDP or broker

Applicants who elect to receive their allocated shares in dematerialised form and who wish to pay by way of electronic transfer must do so, in which case the private
placement application and the section on their CSDP or broker must be completed, and proof of such payment by electronic transfer must be hand delivered, posted
or faxed to:
if delivered by hand or by courier
Designated Adviser
Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
39 First Road
Hyde Park
Johannesburg
2196
so as to be received by no later than 12:00 on Wednesday, 15

if posted
Designated Adviser
Exchange Sponsors (Pty) Limited
PO Box 411216
Craighall
2024

if faxed
Designated Adviser
Fax (011) 447 1929

February 2006.

Payment by electronic transfer must be made into the following bank account:
Bank:
Branch:
Branch code:
Account name:
Account number:

Nedbank Limited
Business Northrand
146905
WG Wearne Limited
1469154668

Wearne accepts no responsibility and will not be liable for the correctness of any allocation of private placement shares pursuant to payment being made or alleged to
have been made by way of electronic transfer due to proof of such payment not being received or purported proof of such payment being insufficient or defective or
Wearne, for any reason, not being able to reconcile a payment or purported payment with a particular application for private placement shares.
Applicants, who wish to receive their allocated shares in dematerialised form, can also complete and return this private placement application form to their duly
appointed CSDP or broker by the time and date stipulated in the agreement governing their relationship with their CSDP or broker, together with the method of payment
as stipulated in such agreement.
NO LATE APPLICATIONS WILL BE ACCEPTED.

Reservation of rights
The directors of Wearne reserve the right to accept or refuse any application(s), either in whole of in part, or to pro-rate any or all application(s) (whether or not
received timeously) in such manner as they may, in their sole and absolute discretion, determine.
The directors of Wearne reserve the right to accept or reject, either in whole or in part, any private placement applications should the terms contained in this
prospectus of which this private placement application forms part and the instructions herein not be properly complied with.
Applications must be for a minimum of 5 000 shares and multiples of 1 000 shares thereafter.
To the directors
W G Wearne Limited
1.
I/We, the undersigned, confirm that I/we have full legal capacity to contract and, having read the prospectus, hereby irrevocably apply for and request you to
accept my/our application for the undermentioned number of shares in Wearne at 100 cents per share or any lesser number that may, in your absolute discretion,
be allotted to me/us, subject to the articles of association of Wearne.
2.
I/We wish to receive our allocated shares in dematerialised form and will hand this private placement application form to our appointed CSDP or broker. I/We
accept that payment in respect of these applications will be, in terms of the custody agreement entered into between me/us and our CSDP or broker, on delivery
versus payment basis. (Delete if not applicable)
3.
I/We wish to receive our allocated shares in certificated form and commit to accept the physical share certificate. Accordingly I/We hereby enclose a crossed
cheque/banker’s draft in favour of “WG Wearne Limited” for the appropriate amount due in terms of this application. (Delete if not applicable)
4.
I/We understand that the subscription for shares in terms of the prospectus is conditional on the granting of a listing of the shares of Wearne, by Tuesday,
21 February 2006 or such later date as the directors may determine, on the Alternative Exchange (“ALTx”) of the JSE.

Dated __________________________________ 2006

Telephone number (

) _______________________________________

Signature ____________________________________________________________________________________________________
Assisted by (where applicable) __________________________________________________________________________________
Surname of individual or Name of entity

Mr
Mrs
Miss
Other title

First names (in full)
To be completed by all applicants
Postal address (Preferably PO Box address)
Refund cheque and/or share certificate, if applicable, will
be sent to this address
Telephone number (
)
Total number of ordinary shares applied for
Note: Minimum number of 5 000 shares and thereafter in
multiples of 1 000 shares
Total amount of cheque or banker’s draft to cover
ordinary shares applied for herein at 100 cents per share

(Enter figures only – not words)
R
(Enter figures only – not words)

Section must be completed if shares required in
dematerialised form. Required information must be
obtained or completed by CSDP or broker
CSDP
CSA or Bank CSD account number
Scrip account number
Settlement bank account number
This application will constitute a legal contract between Wearne and the applicant. The issuer of the shares is Wearne. Application forms for certificated or
uncertificated shares will not be accepted unless the above information has been furnished.
Instructions:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

8.

9.
10.
11.
12.

Applications may be made on this private placement application form only. Copies or reproductions of this private placement application form will be accepted.
Applications are irrevocable and may not be withdrawn once submitted to the Designated Adviser, transfer secretaries, CSDP’s or brokers.
All CSDP’s and brokers will be required to retain this application form for presentation to the directors if required.
Please refer to the terms and conditions of the private placement set out in paragraph 10 of the prospectus. Applicants should consult their brokers, bankers or other professional advisers
in case of doubt as to the correct completion of this private placement application form.
Applications must be for a minimum of 5 000 shares and thereafter in whole multiples of 1 000 shares.
Applicants who wish to receive their shares in uncertificated form and who do have a CSDP or broker, must do so in terms of the custody agreement entered into between them and their
CSDP or broker on a delivery versus payment basis.
Applicants who wish to receive their shares in certificated form must submit only one private placement application form and one cheque or banker’s draft in respect of each application.
Payment may also be by way of electronic transfer as set out above. To the extent that more than one application is submitted, the first private placement application form received will
be the one in respect of which Wearne shares will be allocated in terms of the prospectus and further application form(s) will be ignored. The application monies applicable thereto will be
held by the transfer secretaries and returned without interest to the applicants concerned with all other returned cheques in terms of the prospectus at the applicant’s risk. Postal orders,
cash or telegraphic transfers will not be accepted.
No receipts will be issued for application forms, application monies or any supporting documentation and applications will only be regarded as complete when the relevant cheque/banker’s
draft has been paid. All monies will be deposited immediately for payment. If a receipt is required, shareholders or lodging agents are required to prepare special transaction receipts for
application forms lodged.
If any cheque or banker’s draft is dishonoured, the company may, in its sole discretion, regard the relevant application as invalid or take such other steps in regard thereto as it may deem
fit.
All alterations on this private placement application form must be authenticated by full signature.
Wearne will use the “certified transfer deeds” and other temporary “documents of title” procedure approved by the JSE Limited and therefore will issue only a “block” certificate for the
shares allotted in terms of this application.
Blocked Rand may be used by emigrants and non-residents of the common monetary area (comprising the Republics of South African and Namibia and the Kingdoms of Swaziland and Lesotho)
for payment in terms of this and reference should be made to paragraph 10.12 of the prospectus, which deals with Exchange Control Regulations.

We’ve built a solid company.
We’d like to share it with you.

WG Wearne Limited
Main Road
Aureus
Randfontein
1759
tel: 011 412 3000/1/2/3/4
fax: 011 412 3002

PROSPECTUS

